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About Mebuki Financial Group, Inc.

Mebuki Financial Group, Inc.

Ideals reflected in the name

The Japanese word mebuki, or “green shoots,” conveys an image of new leaves budding
on tree branches. This word is used in the Group’s name to express its approach of drawing
on the knowledge and creativity of each of its companies to create fresh ideas and
new value. The name Mebuki expresses our wish to create new energy and value

in local communities and pursue sustainable growth along with these communities.
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MEBUKI

Financial Group

[Brand logo design concept] [Colors in the logo]

The brand’s distinctive logo design shows three fresh young leaves ~ The main color is “assuring blue,” a distinctive shade which
sprouting, expressing an image of vibrant life and growth. Mebuki represents wisdom and trust. This is combined with “grow-
Financial Group is symbolically portrayed as firmly rooted in the ing green,” a youthful color which represents growth and
community, constantly creating new value and developing a prom- the future.

ising future.

Mebuki Financial Group, Inc.



Corporate History (s of March 31, 2018)

November 2015

Notice Regarding the Basic
Agreement Concerning a Business
Integration through a Share
Exchange of The Joyo Bank, Ltd.
and Ashikaga Holdings Co., Ltd.

April 2016

Notice Regarding Definitive
Agreement Concerning the
Business Integration of The Joyo
Bank, Ltd. and Ashikaga Holdings
Co., Ltd. through a Share
Exchange

June 2016

Approval of stock exchange
agreement at the ordinary general
meeting of shareholders of The
Joyo Bank, Ltd. and Ashikaga
Holdings Co., Ltd.

October 2016

Establishment of the Mebuki
Financial Group, Inc.

April 2017

Acquired all shares of Mebuki
Lease Co., Ltd. (formerly known as
The Joyo Lease Co., Ltd.) from The
Joyo Bank, Ltd.

October 2017

Acquired all shares of Mebuki
Securities Co., Ltd. (formerly known
as The Joyo Securities Co., Ltd.)
from The Joyo Bank, Ltd.

December 2017

Opened The Ashikaga Bank, Ltd.
Bangkok Representative Office

March 2018

Opened The Joyo Bank, Ltd. Hanoi
Representative Office
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Disclaimer regarding forward-looking
statements

This Annual Report contains certain for-
ward-looking statements, including estimates,
forecasts, targets and plans. Such for-
ward-looking statements are based on the in-
formation available and the assumptions
deemed reasonable by management at the
time of publication of the Annual Report, and
do not represent any guarantee by manage-
ment of future performance. We are under no
obligation, and disclaim any obligation, to up-
date or alter our forward-looking statements,
whether as a result of new information, future
events or otherwise.
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A Message from the Management

Ritsuo Sasajima, President

Thank you for your continued patronage.

As of June 2018, Ritsuo Sasajima has
assumed office as President and operation
has started under a new management
structure.

We at the Mebuki Financial Group, Inc.
(hereinafter referred to as the “Company”,
and together with its subsidiaries collectively
the “Group”) would appreciate your
continued support as we devote efforts to
live up to the expectations of our customers,
home regions, shareholders and all other
stakeholders.

The environment surrounding local
communities is now facing numerous issues
including the progress of decreasing
population and aging society combined with
low birthrates, labor shortage, an increasing
number of unoccupied houses and concern
over the shrinking local economies amid

Mebuki Financial Group, Inc.

ontinue
prosperous
with local

changes in social structure caused by the
progression of economic globalization.

On the other hand, with the rapid
advancement in ICT (information and
communication technology), creation of new
services and values is boosting drastic
innovations in industrial structure.
Additionally, the northern Kanto area, our
principal base of operations, has high
potential, given its geographical advantage of
being located adjacent to the Tokyo area,
and interactions between customers as well
as regions have been further encouraged,
supported by the development of high-speed
infrastructure networks.

Amid such an environment, under its group
philosophy of providing high-quality compre-
hensive financial services to continue building
a more prosperous future together with local



creating a
future

communities

communities, the Group is determined to
take the initiative in resolving challenges of
local communities.

The Group was established in October
2016 through the business integration of The
Joyo Bank, Ltd. and Ashikaga Holdings Co.,
Ltd. Making the most of the wide-area
networks centered around the northern
Kanto area held by The Joyo Bank, Ltd. and
The Ashikaga Bank, Ltd., the leading regional
banks based in Ibaraki Prefecture and Tochigi
Prefecture, the Group is making efforts to
expand economic exchange in the region. In
addition, to tackle challenges facing the local
communities, the Group will work to support
customers in efficient asset building,
sophisticating and revitalizing consumption
activities, and improving productivity through
active use of evolving digital technologies.

Masanao Matsushita,
Executive Vice President

As befits the name of “Mebuki,” Japanese for
“green shoots,” as a financial group capable
of creating fresh ideas and new values one
after another, we are committed to making
every effort to contribute to the development
of sustainable local communities and to con-
tinuously design a prosperous future in
partnership with local communities by con-
solidating the ingenuity of all officers and em-
ployees of the Group.

We ask for your continued kindness and
support in the future as well.

June 2018

Ritsuo Sasajima, President

Masanao Matsushita, Executive Vice President
Mebuki Financial Group, Inc.

Annual Report 2018
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Financial Highlights (vear ended Marcn 31, 2018)

\.I
MEBUKI

Financial Group

Mebuki FG (Consolidated basis) (Billion yen)
Net income attributable to owners of the parent 43.0 101.3% 42.5
Capital adequacy ratio 10.38% - —

The Group’s consolidated total income and total expenses were 263.3 billion yen and 200.9
billion yen, respectively.
Net income attributable to owners of the parent reached 43.0 billion yen.

Consolidated capital adequacy ratio reached 10.38%.

Total (Joyo Bank + Ashikaga Bank)

Gross business profit (Billion yen) Expenses (Billion yen)
m1H M2H m1H M2H
180.7 vbillion yen 11 3.5 billion yen
195.8
187.5

180.7 1156.3 115.0 113.5

95.8
56.6 56.4
100.0 58.3 57.1
FY2015 FY2016 FY2017 FY2015 FY2016 FY2017
Gross business profit decreased by 6.7 billion yen Expenses decreased by 1.4 billion yen YoY to

YoY to 180.7 billion yen as the increase in net fees Point 113.5 billion yen, mainly due to the implementation
Point | and commissions due to the enhancement of con- of various measures to reduce expenses, the de-
sulting services was offset by the decrease in crease in deposit insurance premiums, etc.

gains/losses on bond transactions.

Mebuki Financial Group, Inc.



Core net business income (Billion yen)
W1H MW2H
736 billion yen
72.0
66.9
32.9 36.3
32.7
39.1 37.2
FY2015 FY2016 FY2017

Net income (Billion yen)

W1H W2H

468 billion yen

58.6
50.8
46.8
26.7
21.6
18.3

FY2017

FY2016

FY2015

Core net business income increased by 6.7 billion
yen YoY to 73.6 billion yen, due to such factors as

Point | the increase in net fees and commissions as a re-
sult of the enhancement of consulting services, as
well as the reduction in expenses.

Balance of deposits (Billion yen)

M Public sector [ Corporate customers
[ Individual customers

1 4,0388 billion yen

14,038.8

- 776.3

13,327.9 18,672.9

804.4 748.0
50208 3.062.8 3,158.8
9,762.1 10,103.6

9,502.6

Mar-16 Mar-17 Mar-18

Net income decreased by 3.9 billion yen YoY to
46.8 billion yen, mainly due to the decrease in
gains/losses on bond transactions, despite the in-
crease in core net business income.

Point

Balance of loans (Billion yen)

M Public sector [ Corporate customers
[ Individual customers

10,580.8 viliion yen

10,580.8

B s

10,3156.4

10,187.1

4,935.9

4,813.1 4,809.6

4,491.2

4,025.6 4,272.8

Mar-17 Mar-18

Mar-16

The balance of deposits increased by 465.8 billion
yen YoY to 14,038.8 billion yen overall due to in-
creased deposits by both individual and corporate
customers.

Point

The balance of loans increased by 265.3 billion yen
YoY to 10,580.8 billion yen overall mainly due to an
increase in loans to individual customers including
housing loans.

Point

Annual Report 2018
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Group Philosophy and Vision

Together with local communities, we will continue to build a more prosperous future
by providing high-quality, comprehensive financial services.

The ingenuity of the entire Group will be combined to contribute to sustainable growth in communities.
We will build a better future together with local communities, seeking solutions to challenges
that affect these communities by providing high-quality, comprehensive financial services.

The Group’s philosophical structure and basic approach of the new Group’s activities

Mission Contributing to local communities
by developing and growing together
Vision Expanding into more areas of business, more regions,
and a greater scale as an open financial group
Using our network to | Developing and Building the Training
promote local offering advanced revenue base professionals:
economic growth: services: through integration:
GrOWth We will draw on our We will develop Our revenue base will Our training will enable
d . wide-area network, which and promote be strengthened by employees to respond
rivers includes major corporations advanced financial streamlining operations professionally to
in the Metropolitan services based on and strategically complex and diverse
area, to increase the flow of IT and inter-industry reallocating business financial needs with an
commerce, information, collaboration. resources. understanding of the
and B2B exchanges. local communities.
Values One-stop comprehensive financial services including leasing,
securities, research functions, and IT services
o Solid relationships of trust with local communities
Underpinnings

Regional financial institutions with the top market shares

Mebuki Financial Group, Inc.



Vision of the new Group (strategic goals)

Building the region’s future as a comprehensive financial services group

The Group will maintain and promote the relationships with customers and local communities, as well as the
deep understanding of local communities that both banks have developed over the years. At the same time,
the Group will use its wide-area network to expand its zone of economic interactions, expand the scale and
scope of comprehensive financial services that it offers, and grow along with communities by promoting “the
development of local industries, the revitalization of local economies, and the creation of new markets.”

Targets for realization of the vision

Second Medium-term Group Business Plan
(FY2019 to FY2021)

(2nd half of FY2016 to FY2018) for the next stage of growth

Getting the new Group
on the right track to success

Basic strategies for business integration

1) Combined ingenuity for regional revitalization - P16 -17
2) Expansion of comprehensive financial services - P13

4) Innovative operations «---wweeeeeeees

5) Development of the new group’s
business management structure .............cccccuneeen. P.19-20

(1)
@
(3) Expansion of area and channels
(@)
()

About 15 billion yen

[ Top line synergy*

B Cost saving synergy

- Reverse synergy
(system migration costs)

A
< Developing systems and other infrastructure >

N |4

About 5 billion yen I
- . I (depreciation for initial costs to be
- completed in FY2024)
*Top line synergy:
2nd half of FY2016 FY2017 FY2018 FY2019 FY2020 Fy2021 After deducting the increased costs related

to top line increases

Annual Report 2018 8
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Market of the Group

Impressive share of its core market, Ibaraki and Tochigi prefectures,

Near the greater Tokyo region.

M Economic scale of our operating area

Ibaraki ~ National ~Tochigi | National Gunma National Saitama National ~Chiba  National Tokyo  National
Prefecture © Rank  Prefecture . Rank | Prefecture  Rank  Prefecture  Rank  Prefecture  Rank  Mefropolitan ~ Rank

Prefectural gross

product (2015) (¥ trilion) 13.0 1 9.0 15 8.7 17 22.3 5 20.2 7 104.3 1

Population (2017) 2892 11 | 1,957 19 | 1,960 18 | 7,810 5 | 6246 6 13724 1
(thousand) 3 3 ; ; ; :

Prefectural income

per capita (2014) 3088 11 | 8204 4 3092 10 | 2903 20 | 2970 16 | 4512
(¥ thousand)

Number of bUSINESSES 115031 13 88,332 19 92006 18 (250834 5 (196579 9 685615 1

(2016)

Manufactured goods
shipped (2015) (¥ trillion)

120 8 | 88 | 13 | 91 | 12 | 128 6 | 127 7 | 84 14

New Factory Locations 1 1

(excluding power supply 40 771 29 13/7

sector) (2016) /93ha | /55ha !
(number/area(ha)) |

56 3 21 2
stha. 3/8 10715 AT/ 346/47

3 /28ha |

Note: The above ranks are the ranks among the 47 prefectures.

Source: Prefectural gross product and prefectural income per capita data is from the Cabinet Office. Population data and Number of businesses are
from the Ministry of Internal Affairs and Communications. Manufactured goods shipped and New factory locations data come from the Ministry
of Economy, Trade and Industry.

Mebuki Financial Group, Inc.



Number of .
bank offices 336 offices

lbaraki 155 offices
Tochigi 120 offices

Gunma 15 offices

Saitama 20 offices
Tokyo 6 offices

Chiba 7 offices

e Others 13 offices

F T N\ as ¢f March 31,2018

T
\l

%
1

Tochigi
ikko
\\

panEEEEER

gust?
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Mebuki Financial Group’s Overseas Business Support Activities

The Group offers various overseas business support services including foreign currency exchange, overseas remittances, loans and
standby credit in local currencies, and the provision of information obtained from local partner banks and government agencies.

In addition to six overseas representative offices of the Group (four offices of Joyo Bank and two offices of Ashikaga Bank, as of
March 2018), we offer a wide variety of support services through business alliances with local financial institutions and government

agencies in Asia and North America.

Room 1901, Shanghai International Trade
Centre, 2201 Yan An Road (West),
Shanghai 200336
P. R. China
+86-21-6209-0258

® E5ET
LeftEiE
THE JOYQO BANK, LTD.

*:
- Shanghai Representative Office, Joyo Bank

e
Hong Kong Represen  t

Suite 1601, 16th Floor,
Tower2, The Gateway,
Harbour City, Kowloon,
Hong Kong

+852-2251-9475

1—--—-—
T-‘E ASHIKAG-. EJLM‘L

iG NG PEFSEEENTATIVE C

5" Floor, Sun Red River,
23 Phan Chu Trinh Street,
Hoan Kiem District,Hanoi
Vietham
+84-24-3218-1668
| 3

Hong Kong

Sh

Mumbai Hanoil )

63 Market Street, #11-03
Bank of Singapore Centre,
Singapore 048942

+65 6225-6543

HOEFIE 0D BEET 1f_==L'=a;

T WE TN TR - T T

Bangkok

L.

Singapore
@

~

[
Jakarta

Major alliance partners 1

Ashikaga

Business overview of alliance partners

Bank Bank
o Provision of various types of information concerning overseas business development;
@ | Japan External Trade Organization (JETRO) . . provision of information concerning foreign country regulations, etc.
. . Provision of various types of information concerning overseas business development in developing

@ | Japan International Gooperation Agency (JICA) . nations; provision of information concerning foreign country regulations
@ | Japan Bank for International Cooperation (JBIC) . Provision of loans to support overseas business development
@ | Nippon Export and Investment Insurance (NEXI) . . Provision of various types of trade insurance to cover foreign transaction risks in export transactions

- ) ) . ) Provision of various types of information concerning overseas business development;
@ | Organization for Small & Medium Enterprises and Regional Innovation, JAPAN . provision of information concerning foreign country regulations, etc.
@ | Tokio Marine & Nichido Fire Insurance o o

. Provision of risk information overseas; provision of risk management consulting services;

@ | Sompo Japan Nipponkoa Insurance o o provision of various types of P&C insurance
@ | Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance . .
® | sEcom ’ Provision of security system and crime prevention equipment overseas;
o E . provision of security services overseas )
11 Mebuki Financial Group, Inc.



Ashikaga Bank’s Bangkok Representative Office and Joyo Bank’s Hanoi Representative Office were established in November
2017 and February 2018, respectively.

The Group has demonstrated its collaborative creation capabilities through holding events such as the Japan-China Business
Meeting in Liaoning Province, Joint Seminar and Business Meeting of Regional Banks in Shenzhen City, Guangdong Province,
Bangkok Business Meeting, as well as co-hosting Manufacturers’ Business Meetings in Hanoi and Bangkok.

n tative Office, Ashikaga Bank

.

e |
Shanghai
® T Taipei

lManila

712 Fifth Avenue, 8th Floor

+1-347-686-8420

New York Representative Office, Joyo Bank

New York, NY 10019
U.S A

689, Bhiraj Tower at EmQuartier,
27" Floor, Room No.2714, Sukhumvit Road,
Klongton-nua, Wattana, Bangkok 10110
Thailand

+66-2-261-2852

New York

Mexico City

Major alliance partners

Business overview of alliance partners

BISY iseq

EISY UINOS/BISY 1SET YINos

BOLILY [BAUR)

Ll s ‘ . Provision of information regarding China;
I . rovision of various financial services including establishment of accounts
Bank of Communications (China) . P 9
. Provision of information regarding Taiwan;
CTBC Bank (Taiwan) . provision of various financial services including establishment of accounts
iy o = . . Provision of information regarding Thailand;
provision of various financial services including establishment of accounts
Bangkok Bank .
e ligaE meEmess . Provision of information regarding Indonesia;
rovision of various financial services including establishment of accounts
Bank CIMB Niaga o ° b
Vietin Bank . Provision of information regarding Vietnam;
. provision of various financial services including establishment of accounts
Vietcombank . .
e e A GV . Cooperation in hosting seminars relevant to Vietnam; various support
orelg gency for business expansion to Vietnam; provision of investment-related information
BDO Unibank . Provision of information regarding Philippines;
provision of various financial services including establishment of accounts
Metrobank .
. Provision of information regarding India;
State Bank of India . . provision of various financial services including establishment of accounts
Provision of information regarding Mexico;
Sz . . provision of various financial services including establishment of accounts
Government of Aguascalientes, ‘ . Provision of local market information;
Government of Jalisco, etc. provision of investment-related information regarding Mexico )

Annual Report 2018~ 12



Developments since Establishment of
Mebuki Financial Group

We continue to forge ahead in order to realize sustainable growth and higher corporate value of the Mebuki Financial Group.

z 1 JOYO BANK

Opened Funabashi Branch/
Funabashi Loan Plaza.

MEBUKI

Financial Group

Establishment of Mebuki
Financial Group

1, i ..L i
*March 2018: Relocated to new premises.
Expansion of comprehensive financial services

MEBUKI MEBUKI LEASE Reciprocated ATM installation
Financial Group T e

- Joyo Lease had its trade name changed to 7 |~ s
“Mebuki Lease” and was turned into a ; A
directly and wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

- Integrated the leasing operations within the
Group.

- Expanded business units in Tochigi Prefecture

to three (i.e., Utsunomiya, Oyama and

Ashikaga).

ol -

October
20117

MEBUKI MEBUKI SECURITIES

Financial Group

- Mebuki Securities was turned into a
directly and wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company. Opened Utsunomiya Branch.

L] ...- 4 =

- Joyo Securities had its trade name
changed to “Mebuki Securities.”

- Increased the number of Ashikaga
Bank’s branches which provide
financial product intermediary services
from 13 to 128.

13  Mebuki Financial Group, Inc.



Expansion of area and channels

%l ASHIKAGA BANK

Achieved integration synergy in the
amount of 4.8 billion yen.

¥2.7 billion )

FY2017 plan

FY2017 result

Opened Tokorozawa Branch.

* May 2018: Relocated to new premises.

December
2017

¥i ASHIKAGA BANK

Opened Bangkok Representative Office.

EY2021
January

Future Plan

Complete system integration.

-

z ! JOYO BANK

Opened Hanoi Representative Office.

Aiming to achieve integration
synergy in the amount of
15 billion yen.

Annual Report 2018~ 14



ESG Initiatives

Based on Mebuki Financial Group’s philosophy of “Together with local communities, we will continue to create a more prosperous
future by providing high-quality, comprehensive financial services,” officers and employees of the Group are working as one and
making various efforts to realize sustainable local communities.

@nvironment

Mebuki Financial Group is engaged in initiatives to pass on the bountiful and beautiful environment to the future, with the aim of
maintaining the natural environment in a healthy state, through the provision of comprehensive financial services.

1. Environment-related loans

Mebuki Financial Group is working to spread and devel- FY2017

op renewable energy in the region through environ- Loans ft(_)r solar power

: . - generation i
mfa.nt related loans fgr power gerTeratlon businesses that oyo Bank + Ashikaga Bank) 3 7 7 cases ¥34 . 9 billion
utilize solar power, wind power, biomass and other forms
o lan enrcy Enviton | Missiee*! | tssue amount

The Group also assists business operators who are Er_wwonme_ntally-

. . ) . friendly private 51 s ¥6 ) O il
working to resolve environment-related issues by such placement bonds
means as offering preferential lending rates for funds for (Ashikaga Bank)
equipment related to environmental conservation. (Joyo
Bank and Ashikaga Bank)

Ashikaga Bank supports companies engaged in en-
vironmentally-friendly initiatives by setting the fee for is-
suing private placement bonds of customers at a lower
level than general private placement bonds when corpo-
rate customers that have obtained certification, accredi-
tation, etc. from institutions specified by the Bank issue
private placement bonds.

2. Relationship with Local Communities

Environmental conservation activities through trust
schemes, etc.

In 1992, we established an environmental conservation fund in
the form of a charitable trust called “Eco-Ibaraki,” and have
granted subsidies on an ongoing basis to organizations, etc. en-
gaged in environmental conservation initiatives in Ibaraki Prefec-
ture.
Subsidies are put to use for the development of flowerbeds,
biological environment, etc. at schools and other locations.
(Joyo Bank)

FY2017 subsidies
a
¥9.62 mitionto 127 recipients L

Cumulative total amount of subsidies granted
since establishment We received acclaim for having supported environmental conservation
. . activities in the region over many years and won the Award from the
¥1 30 million to 1 y 1 7 8 recipients Research Institute for Environmental Finance (RIEF).

15 Mebuki Financial Group, Inc.




gocial

Mebuki Financial Group is seeking to achieve growth together with local communities through “social” initiatives that translate into prosper-
ous regional development by enhancing comprehensive financial services and utilizing wide-area networks.

Cor_nbi_ned_ ingenuity for regional
1. Discovering regional industries and supporting the creation of new businesses [revtaization

Discovering regional industries through business plan contest

Joyo Bank and Ashikaga Bank jointly host the “Mebuki Business
Award,” in which entries for innovative and creative business plans in
the region are invited and an award is presented to selected plans.

Support is provided in various ways to help make the award-win-
ning plans take off as businesses, such as providing financial assis-
tance by utilizing funds, in addition to making technical proposals and
assisting in expanding sales channels. (Joyo Bank and Ashikaga
Bank)

Mebuki Regional Revitalization Fund
In addition to food, agricultural and tourism sectors, businesses
that contribute to regional development and winners of the
Mebuki Business Award are among those that are provided with
support for creating new businesses and expanding businesses
through the Fund.

Amount of investment - .
(cumulative total) ¥1.65 vilion/ 8 projects
March 31, 2018 Fund size: ¥4 billion

2. Development of New Businesses and Expansion of Economic Exchange

Number of plan entries | Number of plans awarded

637 30plans

(Results of second award ceremony held)

Combined ingenuity for regional
revitalization

Business Matching by Taking Advantage of the Group’s Network

By making the most of Mebuki Financial Group’s wide-area network, Joyo
Bank and Ashikaga Bank jointly hold various business conferences relat-
ed to agriculture, food and manufacturing to assist in business matching,
etc. among clients. (Joyo Bank and Ashikaga Bank)

Outline of “Mebuki FG Manufacturing Business Forum”

480 cases

Number of cases of
390 cases business negotiations
- (based on reservation
2,000 visitors 2,200 visitors in advance)

I Number of visitors

2017/2 2018/2  (Forum year/month)

Overseas Business Matching

To assist in customers’ overseas business expansion, we hold seminars,
business conferences and networking events overseas, which are utilized
as an opportunity not only for local firms and exhibiting companies to en-
gage in business negotiations with each other, but also for providing the
latest business information and for Japanese companies with a local
presence across different industries to exchange information with each
other. (Joyo Bank and Ashikaga Bank)

Overseas business
matching cases 1 55 Ccases
(FY2017) (Joyo Bank + Ashikaga Bank)

7}

- % "
i G ) —
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3. Initiatives to Support Sustainable Growth of Regional Economy revitalization

(1) Innovation and Passing Down Technical Know-how

Business Succession Support

Along with the aging of management executives, an increasing number of companies are having business succession issues. At Mebuki
Financial Group, the respective head offices and branches of Joyo Bank and Ashikaga Bank as well as external specialized institutions, etc.
collaborate with each other to think through problems together with customers in order to facilitate business and asset succession, etc. and
provide them with assistance in various ways to resolve their issues. (Joyo Bank and Ashikaga Bank)

7\

p

- Establishment of a team dedicated to business succession, inheri-
tance-related operations, etc. in the head offices

- Development of a framework of collaboration among branches, head
offices and specialized institutions

- Delivery of information through seminars, etc.

- Classes held on an ongoing basis to train next-generation management
executives, etc.

Number of business succession and
M&A proposal clients (Fy2017)

3 y 7 66 (Joyo Bank + Ashikaga Bank)

(2) Support for Development of Human Resources of the Region’s Future
Lessons on Finance

We conduct /essons on finance to teach the importance of
money and the role of banks to the next generation. (Joyo
Bank and Ashikaga Bank)

Numctgar:dcafclteesasons Number of participants
90 Approx. 2,800 participants

(FY2017: Joyo Bank + Ashikaga Bank)

(3) Support for Prosperous and Dynamic Regional Development and Safe & Secure Urban Development
Contribution to Local Communities through Financial Services

We help community-loving customers who want to do something for the future of children and local communities fulfill their wish. By making
good use of a part of the commissions on private placement bonds issued by customers, we have contributed books, sporting goods, welfare
equipment and other items to schools, etc. of customers’ choice Joyo Bank and
Ashikaga Bank have donated a combined total of more than 40 million yen to date.
(Joyo Bank and Ashikaga Bank)

By utilizing a similar scheme, we have also donated items to be used at the /ki ki
Ibaraki Yume Kokutai/Taikai (“Active Ibaraki Dream National Sports Festival”) sched-
uled to be held in September 2019. (Joyo Bank)

Private placement bonds with donation scheme (Cumulative total)

Number of issues Amount issued

310 ¥ 27 .6 vilion

(March 31, 2018: Joyo Bank + Ashikaga Bank)

Support for Regional Revitalization through Sports (' s ae e

We support regional revitalization through the promotion of sports. Both Joyo
Bank and Ashikaga Bank sponsor local sports clubs, etc. and support the
activities of teams together with local community members. (Joyo Bank and - 1
Ashikaga Bank) f S —

/ ,F“ 18 |.,m.¢_n....l-.rr--.-

17  Mebuki Financial Group, Inc.



Regional Contribution Initiatives by Employees
Our employees are engaged in the “Eco-cap Campaign,” in which the pro- Reduction in CO2
ceeds from the collection/sale of PET bottle caps are donated to purchase of caps collected SNl 2SI0

vaccines for children in developing countries. This has not only helped reduce
the volume of waste but also contributed to the reduction of CO. emission. 737’91 O Approx. 5’490 kg

(Joyo Bank) (CO, emission generated if collected
caps had been incinerated as waste)

Strategy (4)
(4) Provision of Services Utilizing Digital Technology Innovative operations

We are striving to develop innovative services that leverage IT functions in an effort to improve convenience for customers. We are also
promoting digitization to alleviate the administrative burden and reduce the costs of the Group, and utilize the staff and time freed up there-
by to enhance the sales force. (Joyo Bank and Ashikaga Bank)

Provision of smartphone app Utilization of video phone

Total number of downloads
(March 31, 2018)

Approx. 65,000

(Joyo Bank + Ashikaga Bank)

( 7\
Improved customer convenience and service Higher productivity in Mebuki Financial Group
Smartphone app - More time to respond to customers’ inquiries
- Customers can check balance and deposits/withdrawals - Reduces cost through operation of branches with fewer staff
wherever they are at any time - Reassignment of freed-up staff to growth areas
Video phone

- Customers can get expert advice
Over-the-counter reception navigation system
- Reduces troublesome tasks for customers

- Shortens waiting time

Introduction of an over-the-counter
reception navigation system

(1) No need to fill in forms, etc.

(2) No need to affix seal

(3) Shortens customers’ waiting time

Processing time
(in the case of procedures for changing address)

1 8 minutes . 6 minutes
(12 minute reduction)

(5) Enhancement of Capabilities of Human Resources
Promotion of Active Participation of Women

We are proactively promoting motivated and competent women employees to
managerial positions. We also hold workshops for Joyo Bank and Ashikaga Bank
jointly to train women leaders.

Percentage of women in managerial positions
(assistant manager and higher)
26.7%

23.9% 25.8%
. (o]

2016 2017 2018 Mebuki women’s class

(Joyo Bank + Ashikaga Bank) Annual Report 2018~ 18



Development of the new group’s business management structure

The Company takes the initiative in formulating the Group’s management policies and strategies and realizing collaboration within the Group
with the aim of maximizing the effects of integration. It is also the role of the Company to increase corporate value of the Group as a whole
through corporate management of Group companies.

[l In terms of institutional design, the Company takes the form of a company with an audit and supervisory committee, and thereby seeks to realize
prompt and decisive decision-making and business execution by entrusting many of the decision-making authorities relevant to business execution
to directors as constituent members of the Board of Directors in which the knowledge and expertise of Joyo Bank and Ashikaga Bank are concen-
trated, while ensuring a transparent and fair decision-making function and a solid audit and supervisory function through the appointment of multi-
ple outside directors.

[l In addition to appointing multiple outside directors at subsidiary banks that are in charge of executing key strategies, we have established the Cor-
porate Governance Committee consisting primarily of outside directors of the Company and its subsidiary banks, as an advisory body to the Board
of Directors. The Corporate Governance Committee nominates candidates for directors, deliberates compensation for officers, evaluates governance
of the Group and makes other such efforts to improve the effectiveness of governance. We have also organized an executive session comprised ex-
clusively of outside directors of the Company and its subsidiary banks, providing the framework for outside directors to exchange information and
share views with each other and proactively absorb diverse opinions.

The Company engages in management guidance, management and supervision of directly and wholly-owned subsidiaries, and through such
directly and wholly-owned subsidiaries, executes corporate management of other subsidiaries. Appropriate corporate management and gover-
nance is thereby ensured on a Group-wide scale.

l Joyo Bank and Ashikaga Bank serve as the frontier for expanding business based on the Group’s management policies and strategies and translat-
ing the integration effects into revitalization and promotion of the regional economy, while not only maintaining and demonstrating their unique
properties for deepening the relationship with local communities they have built but also collaborating closely as a group.

B In terms of institutional design, subsidiary banks are similar to the Company in that they take the form of a company with an audit and supervisory
committee. Multiple outside directors with expertise and extensive knowledge of regional circumstances are appointed in the subsidiary banks as
well (three outside directors at each subsidiary bank).

l Corporate management of subsidiaries that are not directly owned by the Company is executed by the subsidiary bank that directly owns such sub-
sidiaries; the Company properly manages their status to ensure appropriate and efficient corporate management and highly effective governance
within the Group as a whole.

[Corporate Governance Structure of the Group] (As of June 27, 2018)

General Meeting of Shareholders

Appoint/Dismiss Appoint/Dismiss

JEUGEEY  Board of Directors
> (12 Directors including Audit and Superws_ory Comn_uttee
3 Outside Directors) (5 Audit and Supervisory Committee

Members including 3 Outside Members)

Corporate Governance Committee

(3 Outside Directors, 1 Outside Director each
from Joyo Bank and Ashikaga Bank,
2 Representative Directors) Cooperate

Management ALM/Risk Management Compliance System Integration A
Meeting Committee Committee Committee
Group Strategy Committee Internal Audit Section
(Audit Department)
Corporate Planning Corporate Management Regional Revitalization Audi
Department Department Department p, el

Guide/Manage/Supervise

Audit and Supervisory
Committee Office

Cooperate

Mebuki Financial Group, Inc.

Accounting Auditors

Appoint/Dismiss Report/Request consultation

| | Audit

g3 | The Joyo Bank Ltd. HTheAshlkaga Bank, Ltd. | | Mebuki Lease Co, Ltd. | { Mebuki Securites Co, Ltd.
5 | ommasss || Gresosdst || commnns || G
a Guide/Manage/Supervise Guide/Manage/Supervise

Report/Request consultation Report/Request consultation

7 subsidiaries 3 subsidiaries

indirectly-owned
subsidiaries
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Details of the Company’s organizations

<Board of Directors>

The Board of Directors consists of 12 directors (of which three are outside directors). It decides basic corporate
policies and important business matters and supervises the execution of duties by directors. We aim to
realize prompt and decisive decision-making and business execution by entrusting most decision-making
authorities relevant to business execution to directors as constituent members of the Board of Directors in which
our Group’s knowledge and expertise are concentrated, while ensuring the transparent and fair decision-making
function and the solid audit and supervisory function through the appointment of multiple outside directors such
as lawyers and academic experts. The Board of Directors meets once a month in principle.

<Audit and Supervisory Committee>
The Audit and Supervisory Committee, which consists of five directors (of which three are outside directors) who
are Audit and Supervisory Committee Members, audits the execution of duties by directors and determines the
details of proposals related to the appointment, dismissal, and non-reappointment of the accounting auditors to
be submitted to the General Meeting of Shareholders. The Audit and Supervisory Committee meets once a
month in principle.

<Corporate Governance Committee>
We have established the Corporate Governance Committee as an advisory body to the Board of Directors to
enhance the effectiveness of corporate governance for sustainable growth and the medium to long term
enhancement of corporate value of the Group. The Corporate Governance Committee, composed by a majority
of outside directors (including outside directors of wholly-owned banks), deliberates matters regarding nomina-
tion of director candidates and compensation for directors, and reports back to the Board of Directors.

<Decision-making bodies>
We have established the Management Meeting, the ALM/Risk Management Committee, the Compliance Com-
mittee and the System Integration Committee as the bodies to discuss and decide important matters regarding
business execution based on the decisions made by the Board of Directors.

OManagement Meeting
The Management Meeting, which consists of all executive directors, is responsible for making decisions on busi-
ness execution to the extent of the authorities delegated by the Board of Directors, as well as discussion on
important matters regarding business execution. The Management Meeting is held once a month and addition-
ally as necessary.

OALM/Risk Management Committee
The ALM/Risk Management Committee, which consists of all executive directors, the general manager of the
Corporate Planning Department, the general manager of the Corporate Management Department and the gen-
eral manager of the Basel Unit of the Corporate Management Department, is responsible for making decisions
on business execution relevant to group risk management and ALM to the extent of the authorities delegated by
the Board of Directors and for considering and discussing important matters on business execution. The ALM/
Risk Management Committee meets once a month and additionally as necessary.

OCompliance Committee
The Compliance Committee, consisting of all executive directors, the general manager of the Corporate Plan-
ning Department, the general manager of the Corporate Management Department and the general manager of
Audit Department, is responsible for making decisions on business execution regarding compliance to the extent
of the authorities delegated by the Board of Directors, and considering and discussing important matters rele-
vant to practice of compliance. The Compliance Committee holds a meeting quarterly and additionally as neces-
sary.

OSystem Integration Committee
The System Integration Committee, which consists of all executive directors, manages and supervises projects
as a whole and makes business execution decisions within the scope of authority delegated by the Board of Di-
rectors based on the system integration project plan decided by the Board of Directors, in addition to examining
and discussing important matters regarding business execution. Meetings of the System Integration Committee
are convened once a month, and whenever necessary.

Annual Report 2018
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Risk Management System

The Group aims to enhance the risk management system by positioning it as an important management task

from the perspective of the maintenance and improvement of sound corporate management.

[l Risk management system

The Group undertakes its risk management based on the Basic Rules on Group
Risk Management determined by the Board of Directors of the Company.

In order to perform the matters set forth in the Basic Rules on Group
Risk Management, the Company has established the ALM/Risk Management
Committee, which makes decisions on important business execution regard-
ing the Group’s risk management and performs analysis, assessment and
improvement of the matters relevant to the risk management of the overall
Group. The said committee ensures corporate management emphasizing the
risk and return relationship through consideration and discussion focused on

closer coordination between risk management and profit management while
controlling risks appropriately, and facilitates prompt and efficient
decision-making by management.

Furthermore, we have organized the integrated risk management section
responsible for the supervision and integrated management of various risks,
and at the same time, established the framework under which the audit sec-
tion independent from business execution sections performs internal auditing
and validates the appropriateness and effectiveness of the respective risk
management status.

Mebuki Financial Group, Inc.

Board of Directors

Audit and Supervisory Committee

ALM/Risk Management Committee

Integrated risk management section
(Corporate Management Department)

Validate appropriateness

and effectiveness of

risk management system
Decide on important business execution
Analysis, assessment and deliberation on matters for improvement
) . Audit
Capturing, measurement, assessment, and reporting
of risk as a group

Type of risk

Strategic Risk Credit Risk Market Risk

Corporate Management Department

Liquidity Risk Operational Risk
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Co(rfaorate Management Department/
orporate Planning Department

Report/Consult (risk status, response policies)

Instruct (establishment of risk management system) Mebuki Financial Group's Audit Division

conducts internal audits as well as audits of
companies within the Group.

The Joyo Bank, Ltd. The Ashikaga Bank, Ltd.

Important meeting bodies for risk management

<Joyo Bank> <Ashikaga Bank>

(1) ALM Committee (1) Management Meeting

(2) Risk Management  (2) ALM Meeting
Committee (3) Credit Portfolio Meeting

Board of Directors

Audit and Supervisory Committee

Integrated risk management section
(Corporate Management Department)

Mebuki Lease Co., Ltd. | Mebuki Securities Co, Ltd.

Board of
Directors

Integrated risk
management section

Audit

+ Type of risk

Strategic Risk Credit Risk Market Risk Liquidity Risk

Sections in charge of respective risk categories

I
Branches, head offices and group companies

Operational Risk| Strategic Risk, Credit Risk,
Market Risk, Liquidity Risk,

Operational Risk Audit

Internal audit section

J Integrated risk management

The Group undertakes “integrated risk management” which quantitatively
measures various types of risk including credit risk and market risk, using
statistical methods, such as VaR (value at risk), in order to individually man-
age increasingly diversified and complicated types of risk relevant to financial
services, and at the same time, to comprehensively capture said risks. We
aim at maintaining an appropriate level of our capital reserves by comparing
and contrasting the total amount of risk with our financial soundness (our
capital reserves).

Specifically, we allocate capital to each type of risk (credit risk, interest
rate risk, price fluctuation risk and operational risk) in advance to the extent
of our capital reserves and monitor whether the amount of each risk quanti-
fied (risk capital used) stays within the extent of allocated capital. Upon the
allocation of capital, we secure a risk buffer to cover losses larger than those
expected in the statistical methods or risks unable to be captured by the sta-
tistical methods. We confirm the sufficiency of our capital reserves, including
the capital to cover the aforementioned risks, by performing stress tests by
which we capture the impact on our capital reserves under assumed scenari-
0s such as a sudden economic downturn. Furthermore, we confirm the rea-
sonableness and effectiveness of the statistical methods through back tests
in which the risk amount calculated by VaR (value at risk) is compared with
actual profit or loss.

Mebuki Financial Group, Inc.

[ Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk of incurring losses as a result of customers be-
coming unable to pay the principal and interest of loans as promised primari-
ly due to the deterioration of their financial conditions.

Recognizing credit risk as a material risk in our business operations, the
Group aims to enhance the management system to prevent the emergence
of new non-performing loans and to improve asset soundness.

o Credit risk management system

The Group has established the Group Guidelines for Credit Risk Management,
which set forth, as our basic policy of credit risk management, the appropri-
ate management of credit risk on individual loans and the management of
the credit portfolio focusing on risk diversification.

The section in charge of credit risk management, which is organization-
ally and functionally independent from the business promotion sections, is
responsible for the planning and operational management of the internal
credit rating system, self-assessment systems, write-offs and provisions to
the reserve for loan losses, as well as for the monitoring of loan assets as the
specialized organization for the comprehensive supervision and management
of the credit portfolio.
® Management of credit risk on individual loans
We separate the credit-screening sections of companies within the Group
from the business promotion sections to ensure strict screening while also



focusing on credit management during repayment to prevent the status of a
claim from deteriorating.

o |nternal credit ratings

We categorize our customers into 12-grade rating levels by adding qualitative
assessment to the data on their financial condition and cash flow status. In
addition to serving as the basis for self-assessment systems, internal credit
ratings are used across the full range of credit risk management, including
the capturing of credit risk exposure, the setting of lending rates and the allo-
cation of lending authority.

o Self-assessment systems

Companies within the Group strictly implement self-assessment systems
based on common standards and provide appropriate reserves or write down
problem loans based on such assessment. In addition, the reasonableness of
such assessment is validated and audited by the sections in charge of valida-
tion and auditing, respectively, and is also subject to external audits by ac-
counting auditors.

o Quantification of credit risk

The quantification of credit risk refers to the statistical forecasting of future
losses (amount of credit risk) that can be expected due to bankruptcies or the
deterioration of financial conditions of customers. The Group calculates the
amount of credit risk for each customer based on “internal credit ratings”
with collateral and other factors taken into account.

o Credit portfolio management

We capture loan assets in their entirety as a single portfolio and conduct
credit risk management from a macro perspective. Based on the quantifica-
tion of credit risk, we carry out periodic monitoring such as whether the cred-
it risk is concentrated in specific sectors or corporate groups, and analysis
and evaluation of credit situations by rating and region, or based on compo-
sition by industry.

l Market risk management

Market risk refers to the risk of incurring losses due to changes in the value
of financial assets and liabilities of the Group caused by fluctuation in interest
rates, foreign exchange rates, and stock prices.

Our subsidiaries are engaged in investment activities based on their
understanding of risk supported by sufficient advance research and analysis
of market transactions.

For the appropriate control of market risk, we also perform and report to the
ALM/Risk Management Committee of the Company held periodically the quanti-
tative management and measurement under the ALM (asset and liability man-
agement) framework to take action according to the situation.

[ Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk refers to the risk of incurring losses primarily due to difficulty in
securing necessary funds caused by an unexpected outflow of funds or
similar events, or a sharp rise in funding costs.

The Group has established the Group Liquidity Risk Management Rules
to set up the framework under which action plans according to respective
situations ranging from a normal state to urgent cases are defined to prompt-
ly respond thereto.

Specifically, under cash flow management in a normal situation, we
manage indicators such as the trend of deposit/loan balances and funding
limits in addition to primary indicators (funding gap and liquid asset balance)
to avoid an increase of liquidity risk. Furthermore, we define and perform
periodical drills for action plans upon a liquidity crisis to enhance the
effectiveness in a crisis.

Jl Operational risk management

Operational risk refers to the risk of incurring losses caused by inappropriate-
ness in the Group’s business processes, activities of directors and employees
or system operations, or by external events. The Group classifies and manag-
es such risk according to the following six categories: administrative risk,
system risk, compliance (legal) risk, personnel management risk, tangible
asset risk, and reputational risk.

Furthermore, the Group designates the sections responsible for each of
the aforementioned six categories, and also has the comprehensive risk
management section manage overall operational risk.

o Administrative risk

Administrative risk refers to the risk of incurring losses due to directors, em-
ployees or external contractors neglecting precise administration, causing in-
cidents, or committing acts of fraud.

In the Group, the sections responsible for administrative risk and the
comprehensive risk management section responsible for operational risk
gather information on and analyze the causes of administrative incidents
occurring inside or outside the Group to establish or revise administrative
rules or enhance the efficiency of administrative processes through the infor-
mation system based on the results of such analysis. In addition, the Group
has the internal audit section validate the effectiveness of the risk manage-
ment system to establish the framework to detect or prevent administrative
incidents.
® System risk
System risk is the risk of incurring losses primarily due to the failure of
computer systems, erroneous computer operation, or inappropriate computer
use.

The Group has taken necessary measures to ensure the safety and reli-
ability of computer systems including failure response exercises aiming to
establish the framework for early recovery from system failure, in addition to
sufficient advance testing upon the development or operation of systems, the
continuous monitoring of operational status and duplexing facilities.

e Compliance (legal) risk, personnel management risk, tangible asset risk

and reputational risk

We also identify and assess risk through methods in line with risk character-
istics and take appropriate actions for: compliance (legal) risk, the risk of in-
curring losses mainly due to an illegal act committed by directors and
employees; personnel management risk, the risk of incurring losses mainly
due to an act in violation of laws, regulations or agreements relevant to em-
ployment, health or safety; tangible asset risk, the risk of incurring losses due
to damage to tangible assets caused by disasters or defective management
of buildings; and reputational risk, the risk of incurring losses due to the de-
terioration of credit worthiness mainly attributable to reputational damage
caused by inappropriate actions taken by the Group or the circulation of
unfounded rumors.

I Crisis management and business continuity management

We have established the framework for the continuity or early recovery of im-
portant business operations including the repayment of deposits, fund trans-
fer and remittance upon facing a crisis such as a natural disaster, system
failure or pandemic, as well as limiting human and physical damage to the
minimum extent possible.

Upon the occurrence of a crisis, we will establish emergency response
headquarters at the Company and directly-owned subsidiaries to respond
to such emergencies in cooperation with each other. Furthermore, we con-
tinuously perform crisis management exercises and review the business
continuity plan to enhance the effectiveness thereof upon facing a crisis.
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Initiatives for Compliance

Mebuki Financial Group

Board of Directors Audit and Supervisory Committee

Compliance Committee

Corporate Planning Department Corporate Management Department Regional Revitalization Department Audit Department

Guide/Manage/Supervise
Consult/Report
The Joyo Bank, Ltd. The Ashikaga Bank, Ltd. Mebuki Lease Co., Ltd. l§ Mebuki Securities Co., Ltd.

Board of Directors Audit and Supervisory Committee Board of

Directors

Key bodies in compliance
<Joyo Bank>
Compliance Committee
<Ashikaga Bank>
Compliance Meeting

Key bodies in compliance
<Mebuki Lease/Mebuki Securities>
Compliance Committee

Managing section

<Mebuki Lease>
General Affairs
Division

<Mebuki Securities>
Administrative
Compliance
Division

Managing sections
<Joyo Bank>

Corporate Risk Management Division
<Ashikaga Bank>

Compliance Management Division

Group company management
<Joyo Bank>

Corporate Planning Division
<Ashikaga Bank>

Management Planning Division

Supervise Supervise

Supervise

Head Office and branches
Officer and staff in change of
management and compliance

Head Office and business units/branches
Officer and staff in change of
management and compliance

Group companies

The Company has established a management system aimed at group-wide comprehensive management
which enables the Group to perform business operations under the appropriate compliance framework.
We aim to enhance the compliance framework by positioning compliance as one of the most material
management tasks.

@ Organization and structure
We have established the Basic Rules on Group Compliance as the Group’s highest standards for compliance, and
thereunder, other relevant rules and regulations systematically.

The Compliance Committee established within the Company is responsible for decisions on compliance-related
important business execution of the Company and the Group, and for analysis, assessment and deliberation on
matters for improvement relevant to group-wide compliance.

Furthermore, we put compliance into practice through, among other factors, the establishment of the Legal
and Compliance Group of the Corporate Management Department as the managing and supervising section in
charge of group-wide compliance, the designation of the officer responsible for the Corporate Management De-
partment, and the assignment of compliance staff at each management organization within the Group. Important
matters regarding compliance at directly-owned subsidiaries are consulted on and reported to the Corporate Man-
agement Department, which is responsible for the guidance, management and supervision thereof, pursuant to
the Rules for Management of Companies within the Group.

@ Compliance program
The Group establishes a compliance program as the action plan to realize compliance. The companies within the
Group establish a program based on the Basic Policy on Group Compliance Program developed annually by the
Company.

The status of the compliance program performed by companies within the Group is reported to and validated
by the Compliance Committee quarterly, and is also subject to the annual overall assessment which is reflected in
the next year’s program.
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In addition, the Company established the FY2018 Group’s Basic Policy for Anti-Money Laundering, etc. in ac-
cordance with the “Guidelines for Anti-Money Laundering and Combating the Financing of Terrorism” published by
the Financial Services Agency in February 2018, and has decided to build and maintain a risk management system
against money laundering and financing of terrorism by taking a risk-based approach.

@ Severing connections with antisocial forces

The Group has established the basic policy against antisocial forces to stand firmly against and sever any connec-
tions with antisocial forces which threaten the order and safety of civil society and hinder sound economic and
social development.

Regarding severing connections with antisocial forces

Mebuki Financial Group, Inc. and its group companies will take the following initiatives to sever all connections with
antisocial forces.

1. We will respond to antisocial forces as an organization with a strong recognition of our social responsibility.

2. We will maintain close relationships with the police, the Center for Removal of Criminal Organizations and external
expert organizations including lawyers.

3. We will sever all connections with antisocial forces, including any transactions therewith.

4. We will decisively reject any and all unreasonable demands from antisocial forces and take legal action from both
civil and criminal perspectives.

5. We will never provide any funding or benefits to antisocial forces.

Management system for customer protection (initiatives for customer protection)

The Group has established the Group Management Policy for Customer Protection to organize and ensure the
appropriate management system for customer protection from the perspective of the protection and improvement
of convenience for all existing and future customers of the Group, as well as for facilitating finance.

Joyo Bank and Ashikaga Bank have established a supervising section in charge of consultation, complaints
and other communication from customers, and have also entered into a basic contract for the implementation of
dispute resolution procedures with the Japanese Bankers Association, the designated dispute resolution organiza-
tion under the Banking Act, to utilize the financial ADR system for dispute resolution with customers through the
involvement of a third party.

Joyo Bank, which concurrently operates a trust business, has also entered into a basic contract for the
implementation of dispute resolution procedures with the Trust Companies Association of Japan, the designated
dispute resolution organization under the Trust Business Act and the Act on Engagement in Trust Business Activi-
ties by Financial Institutions.
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List of Directors @s of une 27, 2018)

\.I

MEBUKI

Financial Group

[Directors (excluding Directors who are Audit and Supervisory Committee Members)]

Executive Vice President and Director
Masanao Matsushita

President and Director
Ritsuo Sasajima

Director
Yutaka Horie

In charge of Corporate Management, Risk
Management and Information Security

Director
Kazuyoshi Terakado

Director
Eiji Murashima

In charge of Corporate Management

Director
Kazuyuki Shimizu

In charge of Regional Revitalization

Director
Tetsuya Akino

In charge of Corporate Planning

E! 'O BANK

[Directors (excluding Directors who are Audit and Supervisory Committee Members)]
Kazuyoshi Terakado
Ritsuo Sasajima

In charge of Risk Management and :

Corporate Management E'J' MuraShlma

Director-General of Business Headquarters  \asaru Seki

In charge of Markets Administration and :

International Jun Kawauchi

Vice Director-General of Business Hidebumi Nishino
Hitoshi Takenouchi

Chairman and Director
President and Director
Senior Managing Director
Senior Managing Director
Managing Director
Managing Director

Headquarters

Managing Director In charge of Examination and Screening

Managing Director grgngrgg%gsg:me Management and Tetsuya Akino
Managing Director :gfg?;;gﬁeogfsﬂgm;s trave Systems and Yuji Gorai
Director (part time) Eisuke Suzuki

[Directors who are Audit and Supervisory Committee Members]

Director (Audit and Supervisory Committee Member/full time) Takao Shimizu

Director (Audit and Supervisory Committee Member/full time) Yoshihiko Yoshihara
Outside Director (Audit and Supervisory Committee Member) Toshio Mizushima
Outside Director (Audit and Supervisory Committee Member) Kinichi Suzuki

Satoru Kawamata

Outside Director (Audit and Supervisory Committee Member)

Mebuki Financial Group, Inc.

Zi ASHIKAGA BANK

[Directors (excluding Directors who are Audit and Supervisory Committee Members)]
Satoshi Fujisawa

Masanao Matsushita

In charge of Corporate Planning Section and :
Administrative Systems Section Yutaka Horie

Director-General of Business Headquarters - Kazuyuki Shimizu

Chairman and Director
President and Director
Senior Managing Director

Senior Managing Director

Managing Director Corporate Management Section Keizo Shinozaki

Managing Director Markets Section Eisuke Suzuki
. Vice Director-General of Business H H

Managing Director Headquarters Hiroo Shimada

Managing Director Credit Supervision Section Mitsugu Hoshino

Kiyoshi Nozaki

Director (part time)

[Directors who are Audit and Supervisory Committee Members]

Director (Audit and Supervisory Committee Member/ful time) Akihiko Kuwako
Outside Director (Audit and Supervisory Committee Member/full time) Shoji Fukui
Outside Director (Audit and Supervisory Committee Member) Yoshio Kohra
Outside Director (Audit and Supervisory Committee Member) Junichi Sato



[Directors who are Audit and Supervisory Committee Members]

Director
Yoshiaki Terakado

Director
Kunihiro Ono

Outside Director
Ryuzaburo Kikuchi

Outside Director
Toru Nagasawa

QOutside Director
Takashi Shimizu

\‘l
MEBUKI MEBUKI LEASE

Financial Group
[Directors]
Chairman and Director
President and Director
Senior Managing Director
Senior Managing Director
Managing Director

Managing Director

[Corporate Auditors]
Corporate Auditor

Corporate Auditor (part time)

Mikio Kawamata
Hiroshige Sonobe
Sadaaki Kuno
Masataka Komata
Kazuhiko Hiyama
Yoshiaki Kosugi

Hiroshi Matsumoto
Kunihiro Ono

\.’
MEBUKI MEBUKI SECURITIES

Financial Group
[Directors]
Chairman and Director
President and Director
Senior Managing Director
Senior Managing Director
Director

Director

[Corporate Auditors]

Corporate Auditor

Corporate Auditor (part time)

Toru Hakata
Atsuyuki Kurosawa
Hiroshi Mori
Hirobumi Fujita
Fumio Shimane
Hiroo Sugaya

Shuichi Ishii
Yoshiaki Terakado
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Organ ization (as of June 27, 2018)

\.l
MEBUKI

Financial Group (holding company)
General Meeting of Shareholders
Accounting Auditors
Cooperate Board of Directors
Corporate Governance ; ; ; ) ] ) .
Committee W Audit and Supervisory Committee Audit and Supervisory Committee Office

Report

Management Meeting ALM/Risk Management Committee § Compliance Committee System Integration Committee
Group Strategy Committee

(Businelss plan) (Corporate rr|1anagement) (Regional révitalization) (Auldit)

Corporate Planning Department Corporate Management Department Regional Revitalization Department Audit Department
Planning Group Risk Management Group |—Regional Revitalization Group i:Oversight Group
System Integration Promotion Group Compliance and Legal Group Operational Audit Group
Accounting Group Personnel Group
Executive Secretariat Group General Affairs Group
Tokyo Office Basel Unit

Public Relations Office

directly-owned subsidiary

Ve £ % ASHKAGA BANK

Company with Audit and Supervisory Committee Company with Audit and Supervisory Committee
W <
MEBIUKI MEBUKI LEASE I\{IEBIEJKI MEBUKI SECURITIES
Financial Group inancial Group
Company with Auditors Company with Auditors

Stock Information (s of March 31, 2018)

Capital and number of issued shares
Paid in capital 117,495,550,000 yen
Number of issued shares 1,179,055,218 shares

of which, common stock 1,179,055,218 shares

Major shareholders

Mebuki Financial Group, Inc. Joyo Bank
Number of  Shareholding ratio to Number of  Shareholding ratio to|
Name shares held  the total number of shares held  the total number of
(thousand shares) issued shares (%) (thousand shares) issued shares (%)
Nomura Financial Partners Co., Ltd. 122,900 10.43 Mebuki Financial Group, Inc. 722,910 100.00
Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. (trust account) 47,818 4.05
Sompo Japan Nipponkoa Insurance Inc. 40,118 3.40 Ashikaga Bank
The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd. (trust account) 37,982 3.22 Numiber of - Shareholoing ratio to
- : shares held  the total number of
Nippon Life Insurance Company 34,487 2.92 (thousand shares) issued shares (%)
Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. (trust account 9) 27,336 2.32 Mebuki Financial Group, Inc. 1,340,520 100.00
State Street Bank And Trust Company 505223 26,585 2.25
The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 22,225 1.88
Sumitomo Life Insurance Company 21,659 1.83
The Dai-ichi Life Insurance Company, Limited 19,948 1.69
Total 401,063 34.04
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Financial Data

Consolidated Balance Sheet

March 31,2018 Mebuki Financial Group, Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Thousands of

U.S. Dollars
Millions of Yen (Note 1)
2018 2017 2018

ASSETS
Cash and due from banks (NOteS 3 and 22).........cccevveviiiineiiiiiieiieseresereas
Call loans and bills bought (Note 22)
Monetary claims bought (Note 22) .....
Trading assets (Notes 4 and 22) ..........cccccovvriivircennnn.
Securities (Notes 4, 9, 10, 22, and 26) ........c.cccccvvvvenne.
Loans and bills discounted (Notes 6, 10, 22, and 26)
Foreign eXchanges (NOE B) ........cveviriiiiirir it
Lease receivables and investments in lease (Notes 10 and 21).....cccovvvvviiiiniiiiinnns
Other assets (NoteS 10 @nd 23) .........ccoiiiiiiiii e
Tangible fixed @SSELS (NOLE 7)....c.viviviveiiiecee s
Intangible fixed aSSES (NOTE 8) .....vvivivriiiiiii s
Asset for retirement benefits (Note 13)..
Deferred tax aSSets (NOE 20) .....ouvvriiiiiiiiieieeese s
Customers’ liabilities for acceptances and guarantees (NOte 9)........ccccviiiviiiiiinnn.
ATIOWANCE TOF 108N T0SSES ...
Allowance for investment losses....

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES:

DepOSIts (NOTES 10 @NT 22) .....vvviririiiiiiiie s

Negotiable certificates of deposit (Note 22)..............c........

Call money and bills sold (Notes 10 and 22) .....................

Payables under repurchase agreements (Notes 10)

Payables under securities lending transactions (Notes 10 and 22) ...........cccoveeeevinnes

Trading ADIHIES. ..v.vevevvveeeieeee s

Borrowed money (Notes 10, 11, aNd 22).......cvcvviiiiiiiiieicceceecee s

FOrIgN BXCNANGES. ....v.vivivii e

Bonds (Note 12) ...covveviiiiviie

Bonds with warrants (Note 12).......

Due to trust account ...

Other liabilities .........ccoovevviviinnn

Provision for directors’ bonuses

Liability for retirement benefits (Note 13)

Provision for directors’ retirement DENEfitS.........ccocovvvviiiiiiiicccceccc

Provision for reimbursement of deposits

Provision for CONtINGENT I0SSES. .....cvviriiiiiieeieee s

Provision for point card Certificates ..........ccovvivvieiiiriecce e

Provision for losses on interest repayments......................

Reserves under special [aws.............cccooeiviiiiiiiiiiiienan,

Deferred tax liabilities (Note 20)

Deferred tax liabilities for land revaluation (Note 7)

Negative gooaWill............ovevevireriririiiiiee s

Acceptances and guarantees (NOTE 9) ......ovevivrieiiiieiiiiee s
TOtal TADITIES +..vvevee e

EQUITY (Notes 14 and 15):

COMIMON STOCK 1t

Capital Surplus .......coveveviviriinnae
Stock acquisition rights

Retained eamnings..........ccccoceeveaiee
TIBASUNY STOCK. ...ttt

Accumulated other comprehensive income:

Unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities (NOtE 5) .....c.ocovvvveiviviiiiriinnnas
Deferred losses on derivatives under hedge accounting (Note 23)............cccveveene.
Land revaluation SUrPIUS (NOTE 7) ....vevervviieiiiiieieecs s
Defined retirement benefit plans (NOte 13) ......cvviiiiiciicccc
Total accumulated other comprenensive iNCOME ...........ccovviveiiniieiiniieierna,
Total equity

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

¥ 1,708,734

¥ 1,393,762

$ 16,079,180

14,636 5,160 137,728
15,388 15,952 144,805
12,539 7,226 117,997

4,176,768 4,190,681 39,303,363
10,497,976 10,244,730 98,785,892
6,416 7,222 60,376
56,620 48,366 532,801
187,737 120,249 1,766,610
115,146 117,732 1,083,523
14,801 12,414 139,283
15,428 12,275 145,181
2,119 1,609 19,949
24,902 25,916 234,330
(79,324) (78,840) (746,444)
9) &) (85)
¥16,769,883  ¥16,124,452 $157,804,490
¥13977,912  ¥13,507,047 $131,532,068
272,640 284,705 2,565,543
340,540 303,312 3,204,487
26,314 — 247,619
158,149 167,640 1,488,184
504 511 4,750
877,856 735,593 8,260,623
708 757 6,670
5,000 5,000 47,050
31,881 33,657 300,000

1 13 112
114,060 140,446 1,073,304
129 111 1,218
6,014 8,896 56,594

63 51 594

3,781 3,480 35,588
1,603 1,548 15,085
294 294 2,769

13 12 125

2 2 19

28,789 31,410 270,912
9,226 9,454 86,817
1,343 1,501 12,640
24,902 25,916 234,330

15,881,743 15,261,366 149,447,101
117,495 117,495 1,105,632
148,541 148,490 1,397,774

216 193 2,038

489,697 461,631 4,608,048

@) ©) (82)

120,727 128,545 1,136,048
(56) (674) (529)

14,182 12,844 133,458
(2,656) (5,433) (24,997)
132,197 135,282 1,243,979
888,139 863,086 8,357,389
¥16,769,883  ¥16,124,452 $157,804,490

Annual Report 2018



Consolidated Statement of Income

Year Ended March 31,2018 Mebuki Financial Group, Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Thousands of

U.S. Dollars
Millions of Yen (Note 1)
2018 2017 2018
INCOME:
Interest income:
Interest on 10ans and diSCOUNTS .......viviviiviiiecec e ¥113,739 ¥ 89,325 $1,070,292
Interest and dividends on SecUrities ............ccceevevnen. 45,584 35,186 428,947
Interest on call loans and bills bought ..............cccc...n. 108 66 1,018
Interest on deposits with banks 652 502 6,139
Other interest income............... 423 419 3,986
TrUSt TS ..o 42 22 404
Fees and commissions.................. 50,717 36,245 477,253
Trading iNCOME ......ccovvvevivrerinnn, 3,669 2,241 34,526
Other operating income................. 4,768 12,964 44,876
Gain on negative goodwill.............. — 119,219 —
Other income (Note 17)....c.ccvvvvanae 43,608 36,316 410,358
TOA INCOME ...t 263,315 332,510 2,477,799
EXPENSES:
Interest expenses:
INTEreSt ON AEPOSIES .....vivvevcvieiictc s 3,668 2,572 34,524
Interest on negotiable certificates of dePOSIt...........ccccciiiiviviiiviiiia 91 48 865
Interest on call money and bills SOId ...........c.ccovviviiiiicic e 589 595 5,545
Interest on payables under repurchase agreements ........c.oocvvvveiinrresiniresininanan, 246 — 2,324
Interest on payables under securities lending transactions ... 2,395 1,198 22,545
Interest on borrowing and rediSCOUNTS .........vcvieveviiieiiese e 2,103 1,101 19,797
INTEIESE 0N DONGS. ...ttt 132 233 1,242
Other interest expenses 4,926 4,537 46,360
Fees and commissions.................. 13,740 10,036 129,298
Other operating EXPENSES. .......coviiiiiiieeeeiieierens 8,411 7,017 79,152
General and administrative expenses (NOtE 18).......ccovvvvciiiiiiieiiiieieseese s 120,427 98,088 1,133,218
Provision of allowance for 108N 10SSES ...........ccveiviiviiieiiiie et 6,903 6,277 64,959
Other expenses (Note 19)........cccennae 37,339 31,407 351,365
Total expenses............c...... 200,977 163,115 1,891,192
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES 62,338 169,395 586,606
INCOME TAXES (Note 20)
20,182 16,880 189,919
(913) (5,968) (8,593)
Total income taxes 19,269 10,911 181,326
NETINCOME ......ooviiiierctceeeeeeeeeeeee e 43,069 158,483 405,280
NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS........cocvovvvevirirererereieas — 28 —
NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT .......ccovvviviiiviieicieveveveeea ¥ 43,069 ¥158,455 $ 405,280
Yen U.S. Dollars
PER SHARE OF COMMON STOCK (Note 16):
BaSIC NELINCOME ...ttt ¥36.56 ¥156.78 $0.34
Diluted NEtINCOME......vcvvveviiieii e 36.54 156.72 0.34
Cash dividends applicable to the year (Note 14) 11.00 12.00 0.10

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year Ended March 31,2018 Mebuki Financial Group, Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Thousands of

U.S. Dollars
Millions of Yen (Note 1)
2018 2017 2018

NET INCOME ¥43,069 ¥158,483 $405,280
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Note 24):

Unrealized losses on available-for-sale SECUMHES ......vvevivreiiriiiiiieieieee s (7,817) (6,507) (73,564)

Deferred gains on derivatives under hedge accounting ...........cccoeerrrinneiciecnnnn. 617 2,399 5,813

Land revaluation SUMIUS .......oveeiriiieiceiet e 468 — 4,409

Defined retirement benefit plans .........c.ccoovveiviiiciiinnns 2,777 5,233 26,132

Total other comprehensive income (loss) (3,954) 1,125 (37,210)
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ¥39,114 ¥159,609 $368,070
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO:

OWNEIS Of the PATBNT ......cvvveiiicicce e ¥39,114 ¥159,581 $368,070

NONCONTOIING INTEIESES. ...vvvviviviir it — 27 —

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year Ended March 31,2018 Mebuki Financial Group, Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Millions of Yen

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

Unrealized Deferred Gains

Gains (Losses)  (Losses) on
Common Stock on Available-  Derivatives Land Defined
Stock Capital Acquisition  Retained Treasury for-Sale  underHedge Revaluation Retirement Noncontrolling Total
(Note 14) Surplus Rights Earnings Stock Securities  Accounting Surplus  Benefit Plans Total Interests Equity
BALANCE, APRIL 1, 2016... ¥ 85,113 ¥ 58,574 ¥132  ¥333,964  ¥(21,569) ¥135,031 ¥(3,073)  ¥13,002 ¥(10,667) ¥134,293 ¥1,662  ¥592,070
Increase due to share exchange 32,382 90,616 122,998
Cash dividends..........c.cccvevveiiiiinians (1,832) (9,397) (11,230
Net income attributable to owners of
the parent 158,455 158,455
Purchase of treasury stock (11) (11)
Disposal of treasury stock 1 0) 25 25
Retirement of treasury stock.. (21,548) 21,548 —
Changes due to acquiring equity of
consolidated subsidiaries.................. 1,131 1,131
Reversal of land revaluation surplus..... 158 158
Net changes during the fiscal year 61 (6,485) 2,399 (158) 5,233 988 (1,562 (512
Total changes during the fiscal year-......... 32,382 89,916 61 127,666 21,562 (6,485) 2,399 (158) 5,233 988 (1,562) 271,016
BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2017 ....coovvivines ¥117,495 ¥148,490 ¥193  ¥461,631 ¥ (6) ¥128,545 ¥ (674) ¥12,844 ¥ (5433) ¥135,282 ¥ — ¥863,086
Millions of Yen
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income
Unrealized  Deferred Gains
Gains (Losses)  (Losses) on
Common Stock on Available-  Derivatives Land Defined
Stock Capital Acquisition Retained Treasury for-Sale under Hedge  Revaluation  Retirement Total
(Note 14) Surplus Rights Earnings Stock Securities Accounting Surplus Benefit Plans Total Equity
BALANCE, APRIL 1, 2017...cccvvvieriiian ¥117,495 ¥148,490 ¥193 ¥461,631 ¥(6) ¥128,545 ¥(674) ¥12,844 ¥(5,433)  ¥135,282 ¥863,086
Cash dividends..........c..ccccooviveiniinis (14,133) (14,133)
Net income attributable to owners of
the parent 43,069 43,069
Purchase of treasury stock 2 2
Disposal of treasury stock ................... 50 0 51
Reversal of land revaluation surplus..... (869) (869)
Net changes during the fiscal year....... 23 (7,817) 617 1,338 2,777 (3,084) (3,061)
Total changes during the fiscal year 50 23 28,065 1) (7,817) 617 1,338 2,777 (3,084) 25,053
BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2018.. ¥117,495 ¥148,541 ¥216 ¥489,697 ¥(8) ¥120,727 ¥(56) ¥14,182 ¥(2,656) ¥132,197  ¥888,139
Thousands of U.S. Dollars
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income
Unrealized  Deferred Gains
Gains (Losses)  (Losses) on
Common Stock on Available-  Derivatives Land Defined
Stock Capital Acquisition Retained Treasury for-Sale under Hedge  Revaluation  Retirement Total
(Note 14) Surplus Rights Earnings Stock Securities Accounting Surplus Benefit Plans Total Equity
BALANCE, APRIL 1, 2017 . $1,105,632  $1,397,296 $1,821  $4,343,948 $(65) $1,209,612 $(6,343)  $120,866 $(51,129) $1,273,006 $8,121,638
Cash dividends.. (132,998) (132,998)
Net income attributable to owners of
the Parent ........cccoevveviviiieeiens 405,280 405,280
Purchase of treasury Stock.................. (24) (24)
Disposal of treasury stock .................. 478 7 485
Reversal of land revaluation surplus..... (8,182 (8,182
Net changes during the fiscal year 217 (73,564) 5,813 12,592 26,132 (29,027) (28,810)
Total changes during the fiscal year 478 217 264,100 (17) (73,564) 5,813 12,692 26,132 (29,027) 235,751
BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2018 . $1,105,632 $1,397,774 $2,038 $4,608,048 $(82) $1,136,048 $ (529) $133,458 $(24,997) $1,243,979 $8,357,389

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended March 31,2018 Mebuki Financial Group, Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Thousands of

U.S. Dollars
Millions of Yen (Note 1)
2018 2017 2018
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Income before income taxes ¥ 62,338 ¥169,395 $ 586,606
Adjustments for:
INCOME TAXES PAIG. ... vttt bbbttt (22,393) (16,614) (210,718)
Depreciation and amortization 8,654 7,327 81,437
Impairment loss...... 1,813 1,463 17,061
Gain on negative goodwill... — (119,219 —
Loss on step acquisition. —_ 184 —_
Amortization of negative goodwill.................. (158) (158) (1,487)
Increase (decrease) in allowance for loan losses 484 (400) 4,556
Increase in provision for directors’ bonuses... 18 44 170
Increase in asset for retirement benefits.... (3,561) (1,323) (33,511)
Increase (decrease) in liabilities for retirement benefits.. (1,359) 8,764 (12,790)
Increase in provision for directors’ retirement benefits... 1 13 107
Increase in provision for reimbursement of deposits...... 301 317 2,834
Increase (decrease) in provision for contingent losses 54 (18) 514
Increase (decrease) in provision for point card certificates . (0) 38 (6)
Increase (decrease) in provision for interest repayments.... 0 2 9
Gain on fund management...........c.cccoeveiirierennan, (160,508) (131,337) (1,510,383)
Financing expenses ....... 14,155 10,305 133,200
Losses (gains) related to securities . 11,236 (4,941) 105,737
Foreign exchange 10SSES (QAINS) ......vvvuveirieeiiiriiiiee e 11,488 (12,902) 108,109
Losses (gains) on disposal Of fIXEA @SSEES........v.evririiiriciiriee e (630) 431 (5,929)
Net decrease (inCrease) in rading @SSELS ..........covrririiriiiii e (5,313) 1,225 (49,995)
Net decrease in trading HaDlItIES ..........c.ovviiiiiii e (6) (383) (65)
Net increase in 10ans and Dills AISCOUNTEA ...........cvovriiiriririiiiiise e (253,246) (153,758) (2,383,046)
NEL INCIBASE IN UBPOSIES ... 470,864 270,177 4,430,836
Net increase (decrease) in negotiable certificates of deposit (12,064) 37,290 (113,531)
Net increase in borrowed money (excluding subordinated DOMMOWINGS) ........ccvvvevivriiiiiiiicscae 142,262 272,353 1,338,693
Net decrease in deposit (excluding cash equUIVaIBNTS) ..........cccvviiiiiiiie e 8,693 57,258 81,805
Net decrease in call loans (8,911) (1,499) (83,853)
Net increase in call money 37,228 35,956 350,315
Net increase (decrease) in payables under securities lending transactions..............c.cccceeeiiciirinnns (9,490) 15,881 (89,309)
Net decrease in foreign eXChangEs - @SSELS .......vcviviviviviviriiicieicse e 806 1,256 7,592
Net decrease in foreign exchanges - ADIIIHES ...........ccoeviviiiiiiicecc e (48) (409) (459)
Net increase in lease receivables and inveStMENts iN I8ASE...........ccvvviiieiiiiicces e (8,254) (5,135) (77,672)
Net decrease in due t0 trUSt ACCOUNT........c.vii i (1) ) (12)
Proceeds from fund ManagemMENT...........ciiiiriiriririsesss s 160,454 129,285 1,509,877
PaYMENTS fOr fINANCE .......vv v (13,823) (8,791) (130,076)
OBNBINBL 1.t (18,880) (62,863) (177,667)
TOMAl AAJUSTMENTS ... 349,877 329,815 3,292,342
Net cash provided by Operating CtVIIES ........c.cviiiiiicee e ¥412,215 ¥499,210 $3,878,949
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Thousands of

U.S. Dollars
Millions of Yen (Note 1)
2018 2017 2018
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of securities ¥(1,352,901) ¥(1,405,130) $(12,730,792)
Proceeds from sales of securities .. 897,937 1,017,603 8,449,581
Proceeds from redemption of securities 391,620 271,065 3,685,143
Purchases of tangible fixed assets (5,337) (4,973) (50,226)
Proceeds from sales of tangible fixed assets 2,117 167 19,924
Purchases of intangible fixed assets (6,101) (3,348) (57,415)
Other-net 6 (94) 62
Net cash used in investing activities (72,659) (124,710) (683,722)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Redemption of subordinated bonds —_ (10,000) —_
Purchase of treasury stocks ...... (2) (11) (24)
Proceeds from sales of treasury stocks . 50 3 474
Cash dividends paid (14,133) (11,230) (132,998)
Dividends paid to NONCONrOIING INTEMESES..........vcvivvciireieicce et — 1) —
Payments from changes in ownership interests that do not result in change in scope of consolidation....... — (453) —_
Net cash used in fiNANCING ACHVITIES .........cveviviviiiiiieiiieee e (14,085) (21,693) (132,548)
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS .......ovviiriiiiiniecincina (1,796) 29 (16,909)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ..ottt 323,673 352,836 3,045,770
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR..........ccccvevnne 1,369,893 396,713 12,890,690
INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS DUE TO SHARE EXCHANGE ... — 620,343 —_
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR (NOtE 3)......cvevviieiriiriireieiieieiceeiies e ¥1,693,567 ¥1,369,893 $15,936,460
NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITY:
Increase in assets and liabilities due to share exchange when it was decided that The Joyo Bank, Ltd.
would be the acquiring company and Mebuki Financial Group, Inc. would be the acquired company
¥— ¥6,207,461 $—
Of which, 10ans and DillS QISCOUNTEA ..........cviviriiiiieeee e — 4,221,375 —
OF WHICN, SECUIHIES ... s —_ 1,314,586 —_
Of which, allowance for I0aN 10SSES ...........viiiriiriiiei s —_ (38,581) —_
TORAI TADIHIES: ... — 5,964,697 —
Of which, deposits —_ 5,148,407 —_

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Year Ended March 31,2018 Mebuki Financial Group, Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of Mebuki Financial Group,
Inc. (the “Company”) and its consolidated subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
have been prepared in accordance with the provisions set forth in the Japanese
Financial Instruments and Exchange Act and its related accounting regulations, in
accordance with the Enforcement Regulation for the Banking Act and in accor-
dance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan (*Japanese
GAAP”), which are different in certain respects as to the application and disclo-
sure requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards. In addition,
certain reclassifications have been made in the 2017 consolidated financial
statements to conform to the classifications used in 2018.

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, certain reclassifica-
tions and rearrangements have been made to the consolidated financial state-
ments issued domestically in order to present them in a form which is more
familiar to readers outside Japan.

The consolidated financial statements are stated in Japanese yen, the cur-
rency of the country in which the Company is incorporated and operates. The
translations of Japanese yen amounts into U.S. dollar amounts are included sole-
ly for the convenience of readers outside Japan and have been made at the rate
of ¥106.27 to $1, the approximate rate of exchange at March 31, 2018. Such
translations should not be construed as representations that the Japanese yen
amounts could be converted into U.S. dollars at that or any other rate.

The Company conducted a share exchange on October 1, 2016, under
which the Company became the wholly-owning parent company and The Joyo
Bank, Ltd. (“Joyo”) became the wholly-owned subsidiary. Based on the Account-
ing Standard for Business Combinations, this share exchange is a reverse acqui-
sition wherein the Company is considered to be the acquired company and Joyo
to be the acquiring company. As a result, the consolidated statement of income
for the year ended March 31, 2017, includes those of Joyo for the period from
April 1, 2016, to September 30, 2016, and those of the Company for the period
from October 1, 2016, to March 31, 2017.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a. Consolidation — The consolidated financial statements as of March 31,
2018, include the accounts of the Company and its 14 significant subsidiaries.

Under the control and influence concepts, those companies in which the
Company, directly or indirectly, is able to exercise control over operations are ful-
ly consolidated.

All consolidated subsidiaries have a fiscal year ending on March 31, which
is the same as the fiscal year of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements as of March 31, 2018, do not include
the accounts of three subsidiaries because the total assets, total income, net in-
come, retained earnings, and accumulated other comprehensive income of the
entity would not have had a material effect on the consolidated financial state-
ments.

Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and associated companies were
stated at cost. If the equity method of accounting had been applied to the invest-
ments in these companies, the effect on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements would not be material.

The consolidated financial statements as of March 31, 2018, do not apply
to the equity method of accounting of three unconsolidated subsidiaries and six
associated companies because the net income, retained earnings, and accumu-
lated other comprehensive income of the entity would not have had a material
effect on the consolidated financial statements.

All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated
in consolidation. All material unrealized profit included in assets resulting from
transactions within the Group is also eliminated.

Negative goodwill represents the difference between the cost of an acquisi-
tion and the fair value of the net assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of
acquisition. Negative goodwill incurred before March 31, 2010, is amortized us-
ing the straight-line method over 20 years.
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b. Business Combinations — Business combinations are accounted for using
the purchase method. Acquisition-related costs, such as advisory fees or profes-
sional fees, are accounted for as expenses in the periods in which the costs are
incurred. If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the
end of the reporting period in which the business combination occurs, an acquir-
er shall report in its financial statements provisional amounts for the items for
which the accounting is incomplete. During the measurement period, which shall
not exceed one year from the acquisition, the acquirer shall retrospectively adjust
the provisional amounts recognized at the acquisition date to reflect new infor-
mation obtained about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition
date and that would have affected the measurement of the amounts recognized
as of that date. Such adjustments shall be recognized as if the accounting for the
business combination had been completed at the acquisition date. The acquirer
recognizes any bargain purchase gain in profit or loss immediately on the acqui-
sition date after reassessing and confirming that all of the assets acquired and all
of the liabilities assumed have been identified after a review of the procedures
used in the purchase price allocation. A parent’s ownership interest in a subsidi-
ary might change if the parent purchases or sells ownership interests in its sub-
sidiary. The carrying amount of noncontrolling interest is adjusted to reflect the
change in the parent’s ownership interest in its subsidiary while the parent re-
tains its controlling interest in its subsidiary. Any difference between the fair val-
ue of the consideration received or paid and the amount by which the
noncontrolling interest is adjusted is accounted for as capital surplus as long as
the parent retains control over its subsidiary.

The Company conducted a share exchange on October 1, 2016, under
which the Company became the wholly-owning parent company and Joyo be-
came the wholly-owned subsidiary and accounted for this share exchange by the
purchase method of accounting.

¢. Trading Assets and Trading Liabilities — Transactions for “trading purpos-
es” (seeking to capture gains arising from short-term changes in interest rates,
currency exchange rates or market prices of securities and other market-related
indices or from arbitrage between markets) are valued at market or fair value,
and have been included in trading assets and trading liabilities on a trade
date-basis. Gain or loss on such trading transactions are reflected as trading in-
come or trading expenses in the consolidated statement of income.

Among the trading assets and liabilities, securities and monetary claims are
carried at market value as of the balance sheet date. Derivatives, including
swaps, futures, and options are valued assuming settlement on the balance
sheet date.

Trading income or trading expenses include interest received or paid during
the fiscal year. The year-on-year valuation differences of securities and monetary
claims are also recorded in the above-mentioned accounts. As for the deriva-
tives, assuming that the settlement will be made in cash, the year-on-year valua-
tion differences are also recorded in the above-mentioned accounts.

d. Securities — Securities are classified and accounted for, depending on man-
agement’s intent, as follows:
(1) held-to-maturity debt securities, which are expected to be held -to- matu-
rity with the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity, are stated at amor-
tized cost using the straight-line method.
(2) investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries that are not accounted for by the
equity method are stated at cost determined by the moving-average method.
(3) available-for-sale securities are stated at fair value with unrealized gains
and losses, net of applicable taxes, reported in a separate component of equi-
ty. Securities whose fair values cannot be reliably determined are stated at
cost determined by the moving-average cost method.
For other-than-temporary declines in fair value, securities are reduced to
net realizable value by a charge to income.



e. Tangible Fixed Assets — Tangible fixed assets (except for leased assets) are
stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation of tangible fixed as-
sets owned by the consolidated banking subsidiaries is computed by the straight-
line method.

The range of useful lives is from 3 to 50 years for buildings and from 3 to
20 years for other tangible fixed assets.

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets owned by the other subsidiaries is
mainly computed by the declining-balance method in estimated useful lives.

Depreciation of leased assets from finance lease transactions that do not
deem to transfer ownership of the leased property to the lessee is computed us-
ing the straight-line method over the respective lease periods. The residual value
of leased assets is determined using the guaranteed residual value indicated on
the lease contracts where provided; otherwise, they have a nil residual value.

f. Intangible Fixed Assets — Amortization of intangible fixed assets is comput-
ed by the straight-line method. The cost of computer software obtained for inter-
nal use is amortized principally using the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of mainly five years.

g. Long-Lived Assets — The Group reviews its long-lived assets for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount of an
asset or asset group may not be recoverable. An impairment 10ss is recognized if
the carrying amount of an asset or asset group exceeds the sum of the undis-
counted future cash flows expected to result from the continued use and eventu-
al disposition of the asset or asset group. The impairment loss would be
measured as the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of the discounted cash flows from the
continued use and eventual disposition of the asset or the net selling price at dis-
position.

h. Allowance for Loan Losses — The consolidated banking subsidiaries have
provided an allowance for loan losses, which is determined based on manage-
ment’s judgment and assessment of future losses based on their self-assessment
systems. These systems reflect past experience of credit losses; possible credit
losses; business and economic conditions; the character, quality, and performance
of the portfolio; value of collateral or guarantees; and other pertinent indicators.

The consolidated banking subsidiaries have implemented self-assessment
systems to determine their asset quality. The quality of all loans is assessed by
the branches and the related head office divisions, with a subsequent audit by
the Internal Audit division, which is independent from these divisions in accor-
dance with the consolidated banking subsidiaries” policy and guidelines for the
self-assessment of asset quality.

The consolidated banking subsidiaries have established credit rating sys-
tems, under which their customers are classified into five categories. The credit
rating systems are used in the self-assessment of asset quality. All loans are
classified into five categories for self-assessment purposes: “normal,” “in need
of caution,” “possible bankruptcy,” “virtual bankruptcy,” and “legal bankruptcy.

For claims on borrowers that have entered into bankruptcy, special liquida-
tion proceedings, or similar legal proceedings (“legal bankruptcy”), or borrowers
that are not legally or formally insolvent, but are regarded as substantially in the
same situation (“virtual bankruptcy”), an allowance is provided based on the
amount of claims, after the write-offs as stated below, net of the expected
amount of recoveries from collateral and guarantees.

For claims on borrowers that are not currently bankrupt, but are likely to be-
come bankrupt in the future (“possible bankruptcy”), an allowance is provided in
the amount deemed necessary based on an overall solvency assessment of the
claims, net of the expected amount of recoveries from collateral and guarantees.

For claims on borrowers whose loans are classified as “restructured loans”
over a certain amount, for which future cash flows from the collection of principal
and interest are reasonably estimated, an allowance is provided for the difference
between the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the con-
tracted interest rate and the carrying value of the claims based on the discounted
cash flow method.

For other claims, an allowance is provided based on the actual historical
loss ratio.

For collateralized or guaranteed claims of borrowers who are in “virtual
bankruptcy” or “legal bankruptcy,” the amount exceeding the estimated value of
collateral or guarantees has been deducted as deemed uncollectible directly from
those claims. As of March 31, 2018 and 2017, the deducted amounts were
¥20,194 million ($190,032 thousand) and ¥23,642 million, respectively.

Other consolidated subsidiaries determine allowances for loan losses that
are provided for general claims at an amount based on the actual historical rate
of loan losses and for specific claims (from potentially bankrupt customers, etc.)
at an estimate of the amounts deemed uncollectible based on the respective as-
sessments.

i. Allowance for Investment Losses — Allowance for investment losses is pro-
vided at the amount deemed necessary to cover estimated possible losses on in-
vestments, which one consolidated banking subsidiary may incur in the future.

J. Provision for Directors’ Bonuses — Provision for directors’ bonuses (includ-
ing executive officers) is provided in the amount of the estimated bonuses that
are attributable to each fiscal year.

k. Employees’ Retirement Benefits — The Company accounts for the liability
for retirement benefits based on the projected benefit obligations and plan assets at
the balance sheet date. The projected benefit obligations are attributed to periods
on a benefit formula basis. Actuarial gains and losses and past service costs that
are yet to be recognized in profit or loss are recognized within equity (accumulated
other comprehensive income), after adjusting for tax effects and are recognized in
profit or loss from the next year of incurrence and the year of incurrence, respec-
tively, by the straight-line method over a period (mainly 10 years) no longer than
the expected average remaining service period of the employees.

1. Provision for Directors’ Retirement Benefits — Provision for directors’ re-
tirement benefits, which is provided for payments of retirement benefits to direc-
tors, is recorded in the amount deemed accrued at the fiscal year end date
based on the estimated amount of benefits.

m. Provision for Reimbursement of Deposits — Provision for reimbursement
of deposits, which were derecognized as liabilities under certain conditions, is
provided for possible losses on future claims and is calculated based on the his-
torical reimbursement experience.

n. Provision for Contingent Losses — Provision for contingent losses is pro-
vided for possible loan losses guaranteed by the credit guarantee corporations in
an amount deemed necessary based on estimated losses in the future, calculat-
ed using historical default rates after exclusion of contingent losses covered by
other reserves.

0. Provision for Point Card Certificates — Provision for point card certificates,
which is provided for the future use of points granted to customers under credit
card points program, is calculated by converting the outstanding points into a
monetary amount and rationally estimating and recognizing the amount that will
be redeemed in the future.

p. Provision for Losses on Interest Repayments — Some consolidated sub-
sidiaries provide a provision for losses on interest repayments in an amount
deemed necessary based on estimated amounts to be repaid, taking into account
historical records of interest repayments on the portion of loans whose interest
rates exceeded the maximum interest rate stipulated by the Interest Limitation Law.
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q. Reserves under Special Laws — Reserves under special laws is a reserve
for contingent liabilities and provided for compensation for losses from securi-
ties-related transactions or derivative transactions in the amount of ¥2 million
($19 thousand) and ¥2 million as of March 31, 2018 and 2017, pursuant to Arti-
cle 46-5-1 of the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act and Article 175 of the
related cabinet order.

r. Stock Options — Compensation expense for employee stock options which
were granted on and after May 1, 2006 are recognized based on the fair value at
the date of grant and over the vesting period as consideration for receiving goods
or services in accordance with the Accounting Standards Board of Japan
(“ASBJ”) Statement No. 8, “Accounting Standard for Stock Options.” Stock op-
tions granted to nonemployees are accounted for based on the fair value of either
the stock option or the goods or services received. In the balance sheet, the
stock option is presented as a stock acquisition right as a separate component of
equity until exercised. The accounting standard allows unlisted companies to
measure options at their intrinsic value if they cannot reliably estimate fair value.

s. Stock Issue Costs — Stock issue costs are charged to income as incurred.

t. Leases — As a lessor, finance leases that are not deemed to transfer owner-
ship of the leased property to the lessee are recognized as investments in lease.

Income and expenses are recognized when lease receivables are collected
as for finance lease transactions that do not transfer ownership of the property.

As for finance lease transactions that do not transfer ownership of the
leased property and which commenced prior to April 1, 2008, in line with the
stipulations of Article 81 of the Guidance on Accounting Standard for Lease
Transactions the ASBJ Guidance No. 16, March 25, 2011), book value (after de-
duction of accumulated depreciation) of lease assets included in tangible fixed
assets and intangible assets as of the previous balance sheet date (March 31,
2008) was recorded as the initial balance of “Lease receivables and investments
in lease.”

u. Income Taxes — The provision for income taxes is computed based on the
pretax income included in the consolidated statement of income. The asset and
liability approach is used to recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities for the
expected future tax consequences of temporary differences between the carrying
amounts and the tax bases of assets and liabilities. Deferred taxes are measured
by applying currently enacted income tax rates to the temporary differences.

The Group files a tax return under the consolidated corporate-tax system,
which allows companies to base tax payments on the combined profits or losses
of the parent company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries.

v. Translation of Foreign Currencies — Assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at exchange rates prevailing as of the consoli-
dated balance sheet date.

w. Derivatives and Hedging Activities — Derivative financial instruments are
classified and accounted for as follows: (a) all derivatives, except those entered
into for hedging purposes, are recognized as either assets or liabilities and mea-
sured at fair value with gains or losses on derivative transactions recognized in
the consolidated statement of income or (o) for derivatives used for hedging pur-
poses, if the derivatives qualify for hedge accounting because of high correlation
and effectiveness between the hedging instruments and the hedged items, gains
or losses on the derivatives are deferred until maturity of the hedged transactions
(deferral hedge accounting).
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The consolidated banking subsidiaries apply deferral hedge accounting
based on the rules of the Japanese Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“JICPA”) Industry Audit Committee Report No. 24, “Accounting and Auditing
Treatments on the Application of Accounting Standards for Financial Instruments
in the Banking Industry,” for interest rate derivatives to manage interest rate risk
from various financial assets and liabilities, as a whole. Under these rules, the ef-
fectiveness of a fair value hedge is assessed by an identified group of hedge de-
posits, loans, and similar instruments and by a corresponding group of hedging
instruments, such as interest rate swaps in the same maturity category. Also,
under these rules, the effectiveness of cash flow hedges is assessed based on
the correlation between a base interest rate index of the hedged cash flow and
that of the hedging instrument.

The consolidated banking subsidiaries apply deferral hedge accounting
based on the rules of the JICPA Industry Audit Committee Report No. 25, “Ac-
counting and Auditing Treatments for Foreign Currency Transactions in the Bank-
ing Industry,” to currency swaps and funding swaps used for the purpose of
currency exchange. Under the deferral hedge accounting, hedged items are
identified by grouping the foreign currency-denominated financial assets and lia-
bilities by currencies and designating derivative transactions, such as currency
swap transactions and foreign exchange swaps as hedging instruments. Effec-
tiveness of derivative transactions, such as currency swap transactions and for-
eign exchange swap transactions, is reviewed by comparing the total foreign
currency position of the hedged items and the hedging instrument by currency.

One consolidated banking subsidiary applies individual deferral hedge ac-
counting to offsetting the price fluctuation of the strategic shares that are classi-
fied under available-for-sale securities, using stock forward contracts as hedged
items. The hedge effectiveness of derivative transactions is reviewed by compar-
ing the changes in value of the hedged item and hedging instruments.

The consolidated banking subsidiaries apply individual deferral hedge ac-
counting and exceptional accrual method for interest rate swap to some assets
and liabilities.

X. Cash and Cash Equivalents — Cash and cash equivalents in the statements
of cash flows represent cash and due from banks in the consolidated balance
sheets, excluding deposits with banks other than the Bank of Japan of the con-
solidated banking subsidiaries and excluding the time deposits of the Company
and the other consolidated subsidiaries.

y. Consumption Taxes — Consumption tax is excluded from transactions re-
ported by the Group. However, nondeductible consumption tax on tangible fixed
assets is charged to income as incurred.

Z. Per Share Information — Basic net income per share of common stocks is
computed by dividing net income attributable to common shareholders by the
weighted-average number of shares of common stock outstanding for the period,
retroactively adjusted for stock splits.

Diluted net income per share reflects the potential dilution that could occur
if securities were exercised or converted into common stock. Diluted net income
per share of common stock assumes full conversion of the outstanding convert-
ible notes and bonds at the beginning of the year (or at the time of issuance) with
an applicable adjustment for related interest expense, net of tax, and full exercise
of outstanding warrants.

Cash dividends per share presented in the accompanying consolidated
statement of income are dividends applicable to the respective years, including
dividends to be paid after the end of the year.



3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The reconciliation of “Cash and cash equivalents” in the consolidated statement
of cash flows and “Cash and due from banks” in the consolidated balance sheet
as of March 31, 2018 and 2017, was as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2018 2017 2018
Cash and due from banks ¥1,708,734 ¥1,393,762 $16,079,180
Deposits with banks of the consolidated
banking subsidiaries other than the
Bank of Japan ... (15,166) (23,868) (142,721)
Cash and cash equivalents................. ¥1,693,567 ¥1,369,893 $15,936,460

4, TRADING SECURITIES AND SECURITIES
The amounts shown in the following tables include “Securities,” trading securi-
ties in “Trading assets,” and trust beneficiary right in “Monetary claims bought”
described in the consolidated balance sheets.
Valuation difference recognized as income as of March 31, 2018 and 2017,
were as follows:
Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2018 2017 2018
Trading Securities..........cccoovvveveveenenn. ¥(11) ¥32) $(111)

Securities as of March 31, 2018 and 2017 consisted of the following:
Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2018 2017 2018
Japanese national government bonds ... ¥ 851,574 ¥1,145390  §$ 8,013,310
Japanese local government bonds...... 795,583 628,036 7,486,435
Japanese corporate bonds.......... 727,179 672,639 6,842,758
Japanese corporate stocks.. 312,224 311,020 2,938,035
Other securities .............. ... 1,490,205 1433593 14,022,825
TOtal oo ¥4,176,768 ¥4,190,681 $39,303,363

The cost and aggregate fair value of available-for-sale securities and
held-to-maturity securities as of March 31, 2018 and 2017, were as follows:

Millions of Yen
Unrealized  Unrealized
March 31,2018 Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Securities classified as:

Available-for-sale: ................ ¥3,833,680 ¥226,533 ¥54,921 ¥4,005,292
Equity securities............... 150,542 158,520 1,173 307,890
Debt securities:................ 2,203,100 18,839 2,389 2,219,550

Japanese national

government bonds ..... 757,168 8,391 945 764,614
Japanese local

government bonds ..... 793,365 2,703 885 795,183
Japanese corporate

bonds... .. 652,566 7,744 559 659,752

Others:.............. . 1,480,037 49,172 51,357 1,477,852

Foreign bonds ... 628,613 1,738 13,801 616,551
Others........... .. 851,423 47434 37,556 861,301

Held-to-maturity: ................. 154,787 651 518 154,920

Japanese national

government bonds.......... 86,960 37 486 86,510
Japanese local

government bonds.......... 399 0 0 400
Japanese corporate

boNds ..o 67,427 613 3 68,009

Millions of Yen

Unrealized  Unrealized

March 31,2017 Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Securities classified as:

Available-for-sale: ................ ¥3,857,001 ¥216,101  ¥33,284 ¥4,039,818
Equity securities............... 159,550 147,566 418 306,697
Debt securities:................ 2,283,438 27,636 4,393 2,306,681

Japanese national

government bonds ..... 1,044,508 14,948 2,071 1,057,384
Japanese local

government bonds ..... 626,225 2,939 1,378 627,786
Japanese corporate

bonds......cccoveveveienane 612,704 9,749 943 621,509

Others: ....ovvveeeeeeeenen, 1,414,013 40,898 28,472 1,426,439

Foreign bonds ............. 686,614 2,465 9,434 679,645
Others.......cccoveerriene. 727,399 38,433 19,038 746,793

Held-to-maturity: .................. 139,385 488 1,169 138,705

Japanese national
government bonds.......... 88,006 25 1,142 86,888
Japanese local
government bonds.......... 249 1 — 251
Japanese corporate
DONAS ..o 51,129 461 26 51,565
Thousands of U.S. Dollars
Unrealized  Unrealized
March 31,2018 Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Securities classified as:

Available-for-sale: ................ $36,074,910 $2,131,676  $516,808 $37,689,779
Equity securities. . 1,416,607 1,491,678 11,01 2,897,243
Debt securities:................ 20,731,161 177,281 22,489 20,885,953

Japanese national

government bonds ..... 7,124948 78,963 8896 7,195,016
Japanese local

government bonds ..... 7,465,563 25,440 8332 7,482,671
Japanese corporate

bonds......ccovvvvvivireinn 6,140,650 72,878 5262 6,208,266

Others: ..o . 13,927,142 462,718 483,277 13,906,582

Foreign bonds ... 5915249 16,360 129,868 5,801,741
Others.... .. 8,011,894 446,357 353,409 8,104,841

Held-to-maturity: .................. 1,456,550 6,134 4882 1,457,802

Japanese national

government bonds.......... 818,294 352 4,581 814,066
Japanese local

government bonds.......... 3,764 B 2 3,767
Japanese corporate

DONAS ..o 634,492 5,777 299 639,969
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Information for available-for-sale securities which were sold during the
years ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, is as follows:

Millions of Yen

Realized Realized

March 31,2018 Proceeds Gains Losses
Available-for-sale:
Equity SECUrities ......oovvvveeiceen, ¥ 16660 ¥ 7,286 ¥ 12
Debt SECUrities: .......oovvvreriiiiiciine, 237,165 828 235
Japanese national government bonds.... 153,078 706 194
Japanese local government bonds ...... 83,623 119 40
Japanese corporate bonds.................. 462 2 0
OtNrS: oo 586,250 7,460 13,528
Foreign bonds...........ccocveeiiiiicccnns 372,610 1,288 6,134
OtherS....cvevrieieeieeee s 213,640 6,171 7,393
TOtAl e ¥840,076 ¥15,575 ¥13,776

Millions of Yen

Realized Realized

March 31,2017 Proceeds Gains Losses
Available-for-sale:
Equity SECUMEIES ....vvvevieicicvevc, ¥ 9768 ¥ 3446 ¥ 47

Debt securities: ...

.. 520,395 6,984 1,209
Japanese national government bonds....

416,573 6,466 876

Japanese local government bonds ...... 55,234 110 261
Japanese corporate bonds.................. 48,587 406 71
Others .....cccevvvveeeeeiienn, 450,759 10,531 6,477
Foreign bonds 284,282 3,009 3,419
Others........ .. 166,477 7,522 3,058
TOMAl oo ¥980,923 ¥20,962  ¥7,734
Thousands of U.S. Dollars
Realized Realized
March 31,2018 Proceeds Gains Losses
Available-for-sale:

Equity SBCUMHES .......cvveveeveeieieca, $ 156,775 §$ 68563 § 122
Debt SECUMtIES: .v.vvvvvvceeci e 2,231,724 7,798 2,216
Japanese national government bonds.... 1,440,469 6,651 1,834
Japanese local government bonds ...... 786,899 1,126 382
Japanese corporate bonds.................. 4,355 21 0
OtherS: v 5,516,617 70,200 127,300
Foreign bonds.........ccccveeeviiiiiviniennnn. 3,506,265 12,126 57,730
OtNETS oo 2,010,352 58,074 69,570
TOtAl oo $7,905,116  $146,561 $129,638

Marketable available-for-sale securities, whose fair value significantly de-
clined in comparison with the acquisition cost and whose fair value is not consid-
ered likely to recover to their acquisition cost, are written down and recognized
as impairment losses.

The impairment losses on marketable available-for-sale securities for the
years ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, were nil.

Pursuant to “Practical Guidelines for Accounting for Financial Instruments”
(JICPA Accounting Committee Report No. 14, April 14, 2015), the criteria for de-
termining whether the fair value is “significantly declined” are defined that secu-
rities whose fair value has declined by 30% or more of the acquisition cost are
deemed to be impaired.

As of March 31, 2018 and 2017, securities included equity investments in
unconsolidated subsidiaries and associated companies of ¥9 million ($87 thou-
sand) and ¥9 million and capital subscriptions of ¥2,784 million ($26,205 thou-
sand) and ¥2,145 million, respectively.

37  Mebuki Financial Group, Inc.

5. UNREALIZED GAINS ON AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE SECURITIES
Unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities as of March 31, 2018 and
2017, consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2018 2017 2018
Unrealized gains: .........cccovvvvvrviverennnns ¥171,886 ¥182,976  $1,617,447
Available-for-sale securities ........... 171,886 182,976 1,617,447
Money held in trust, except for
trading and held-to-maturity
PUMPOSE ... — — —
Deferred tax liabilities: ..............cccc..... 51,158 54,431 481,399
Unrealized gains on available-for-sale
securities before adjustments by
OWNErship Share..........ccccceeeverevnnan. 120,727 128,545 1,136,048
Noncontrolling interests...................... — — —
Company’s ownership share in
unrealized gains on available-for-sale
securities held by affiliates accounted
for using the equity method............... — — —
Unrealized gains on available-for-sale
SECUMHIES .o ¥120,727 ¥128,545  $1,136,048

As of March 31, 2018 and 2017, the total unrealized gains include an un-
realized gain of ¥273 million ($2,578 thousand) and ¥159 million, respectively
on available-for-sale-securities, contained in certain fund.

6. LOANS AND BILLS DISCOUNTED
The following loans were included in loans and bills discounted as of March 31,
2018 and 2017:

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2018 2017 2018

Loans to borrowers
in legal bankruptcy ..........ccococeveveienns ¥ 4437 ¥ 2757 $ 41,761

Past due loans 142,266 151,089 1,338,726
Loans past due

for three months or more................... 426 805 4,009
Restructured 10ans...........cccceevrvinnen. 37,348 36,280 351,450
TOtal 1o ¥184,479 ¥190,932 $1,735,946

The amounts above are stated before the deduction of the allowance for
loan losses.

“Loans to borrowers in legal bankruptcy” are nonaccrual loans, which are
highly probable to become unrecoverable. Specific conditions for inclusion in this
category are as follows:

(i) Borrowers have made application for procedures under the Corporate Reorga-
nization Act, Civil Rehabilitation Act, Bankruptcy Act, liquidation under the
Companies Act of Japan (the “Companies Act”), or liquidation under other le-
gal provisions.

(ii) Clearance of promissory notes or bills issued by the borrower is suspended.

“Past due loans” are loans on which accrued interest income is not recog-
nized, excluding “loans to borrowers in legal bankruptcy” and loans on which in-
terest payments are deferred in order to support the borrowers’ recovery from
financial difficulties.

“Loans past due for three months or more” include accruing loans for which
principal or interest is past due three months or more.

“Restructured loans” are loans to borrowers in financial difficulty to whom
the Group has provided financial support through modification of the lending
terms to be more favorable to the borrower, including reduction of interest rates,
suspension of repayment of principal and interest, and debt forgiveness.



Contracts of overdraft facilities and loan commitment limits are contracts
under which the consolidated banking subsidiaries and certain consolidated sub-
sidiaries lend to customers up to the prescribed limits in response to customer
applications for loans as long as there is no violation of any condition in the con-
tracts. As of March 31, 2018 and 2017, the amounts of unused commitments
were ¥2,922,672 million ($27,502,331 thousand) and ¥2,938,456 million, re-
spectively. As of March 31, 2018 and 2017, the amounts of unused commit-
ments whose remaining contract terms were within one year were ¥2,011,724
million ($18,930,314 thousand) and ¥2,064,015 million, respectively.

As many of these commitments expire without being drawn down, the un-
used amount does not necessarily represent a future cash requirement. Most of
these contracts have conditions whereby the consolidated banking subsidiaries
and certain consolidated subsidiaries can refuse customer applications for loans
or decrease the contract limits for certain reason (e.g., changes in financial situ-
ation and deterioration in customers’ creditworthiness). At the inception of the

contracts, the consolidated banking subsidiaries and certain consolidated subsid-

iaries obtain real estate, securities, or other assets as collateral if considered to
be necessary. Subsequently, the consolidated banking subsidiaries and certain
consolidated subsidiaries perform periodic reviews of the customers’ business
results based on the internal rules and take necessary measures to reconsider
conditions in the contracts and/or require additional collateral and guarantees.

Discounting bills are treated as secured lending transactions. As of March
31,2018 and 2017, consolidated banking subsidiaries have the right to sell or
repledge bills discounted and foreign exchange bills bought and their total face
value was ¥48,375 million ($455,217 thousand) and ¥44,662 million, respec-
tively.

7. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Tangible fixed assets as of March 31, 2018 and 2017, consisted of the following:

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2018 2017 2018
¥ 40,556 ¥ 41423 $ 381,633
60,949 63,107 573,534
20 26 196
1,202 652 11,318
. 12,416 12,522 116,842
¥115,146 ¥117,732  $1,083,523

The accumulated depreciation of tangible fixed assets as of March 31,
2018 and 2017, amounted to ¥126,724 million ($1,192,478 thousand) and
¥126,558 million, respectively.

Under certain conditions, such as exchanges of fixed assets of similar kinds
and sales and purchases resulting from expropriation, Japanese tax laws permit
companies to defer the profit arising from such transactions by reducing the cost
of the assets acquired or by providing a special reserve in the equity section. As
of March 31, 2018 and 2017, such deferred profit amounted to ¥10,204 million
($96,028 thousand) and ¥9,864 million, respectively. Newly recognized amounts
for the years ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, were ¥344 million ($3,238
thousand) and ¥7 million, respectively.

Under the “Law of Land Revaluation,” one banking subsidiary elected a
onetime revaluation of its own-use land to a value based on real estate appraisal
information as of March 31, 1998. The resulting revaluation reserve for land rep-
resents unrealized appreciation of land and is stated, net of income taxes, as a
component of equity. There was no effect on the consolidated statement of in-
come. Continuous readjustment is not permitted, unless the land value subse-
quently declines significantly such that the amount of the decline in value should
be removed from the revaluation reserve for land account and related deferred
tax liabilities. As of March 31, 2018 and 2017, the carrying amount of the land
after the above onetime revaluation exceeded the market value by ¥26,942 mil-
lion ($253,524 thousand) and ¥28,106 million, respectively.

8. INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Intangible fixed assets as of March 31, 2018 and 2017, consisted of the follow-

ing:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2018 2017 2018
SOMWAE......cvivevevieccceeeeeeia ¥10,498 ¥ 8,254 $ 98,788
Other oo 4,303 4,160 40,495
Total oo ¥14,801 ¥12,414 $139,283

9. CUSTOMERS' LIABILITIES FOR ACCEPTANCES AND GUAR-
ANTEES

All contingent liabilities arising from acceptances and guarantees are reflected in

acceptances and guarantees in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. As a contra ac-

count, customers’ liabilities for acceptances and guarantees are presented as

assets, representing the consolidated banking subsidiaries” and certain consoli-

dated subsidiaries’ rights of indemnity from the applicants.

Guarantee obligations for private placement bonds included in “Securities”
(provided in accordance with the Article 2-3 of the “Financial Instruments and
Exchange Act”) as of March 31, 2018 and 2017, were ¥143,712 million
($1,352,334 thousand) and ¥115,880 million, respectively.

10. ASSETS PLEDGED AS COLLATERAL
Assets pledged as collateral and the related liabilities as of March 31, 2018 and
2017, were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2018 2017 2018

Assets pledged as collateral:

SECUNMHES.....vvvvcvcveveicceee ¥1,244,340 ¥1,081,752  $11,709,234

Loans and bills discounted............. 6,500 — 61,165

TOtal oo ¥1,250,840 ¥1,081,752 $11,770,399
Related liabilities to above assets:

DEPOSIES ..vvveveeeeieie e ¥ 113,111 ¥ 149,269 $ 1,064,374

Call money and bills sold — 5,609 —

Payables under securities lending

transactions...........ccccevveeciiiinaan, 158,149 167,640 1,488,184

Payables under securities

repurchase agreements. 26,314 — 247,619

Borrowed money ..........cccceviiinne 798,937 646,948 7,517,999

Additionally, securities amounting to ¥31,615 million ($297,505 thousand)
and ¥103,860 million as of March 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, were
pledged as collateral for settlements of exchange or as substitute securities for
margins on futures transactions.

One consolidated subsidiary’s lease receivables amounting to nil and ¥117
million as of March 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, were pledged as collateral
for borrowed money.

Moreover, other assets included deposits for central counterparty amounting
to ¥92,768 million ($872,954 thousand) and ¥26,371 million, cash collateral
paid for financial instruments amounting to ¥1,731 million ($16,291 thousand)
and ¥3,327 million, and guarantee deposits amounting to ¥2,051 million
($19,303 thousand) and ¥2,062 million as of March 31, 2018 and 2017, re-
spectively.
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11. BORROWED MONEY
Borrowed money as of March 31, 2018 and 2017, consisted of the following:

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2018 2017 2018

Borrowed money of which the
weighted-average annual interest
rates were 0.26%, due from April,
2018 to March, 2026........................ ¥877,856 ¥735593  $8,260,623
Annual maturities of borrowed money as of March 31, 2018, for the next
five years were as follows:
Thousands of

Year Ending March 31 Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2019, ¥657,268 $6,184,803
202000 41,662 392,042
20271 45,180 425,151
2022, 63,720 599,613
2023, 5 56

Borrowed money included borrowings from the Bank of Japan and other fi-
nancial institutions. In addition, borrowed money included subordinated borrow-
ings totaling ¥70,000 million ($658,700 thousand) and ¥70,000 million as of
March 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

12. BONDS
Bonds as of March 31, 2018 and 2017, consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2018 2017 2018

Unsecured Euro-US dollar-

denominated convertible bonds with

stock acquisition rights issued by the

Company, date of issue October 1,

2016, due April 24, 2019*" ............. ¥31,881  ¥33,657 $300,000
Unsecured straight bonds issued by

Joyo, date of issue May 24, 2000,

due May 22, 2020, 2.64% interest..... 5,000 5,000 47,050
TOtal 1o ¥36,881  ¥38,657 $347,050

*1 On October 1, 2016, the Company succeeded Euro-US dollar-denominated convertible bonds
that were originally issued by Joyo.

Information on convertible bonds with stock acquisition rights is as follows:

Name Euro-US dollar-denominated convertible bonds with
stock acquisition rights issued by the Company due
2019

Type of stock: Common stock

Issue price of stock
acquisition rights: Free of charge
Issue price of stock: $5.07

Total sum of issue price:  $300,000 thousand
Grant ratio of stock

acquisition rights: 100.0%

Exercise period of stock
acquisition rights: From October 1, 2016 to April 10, 2019

Description and price of  On execution of the stock acquisition rights, the corre-
the property to be con-  sponding bonds are to be invested, and the bond’s
tributed upon the exer-  price is same as face amount.
cise of the stock
acquisition rights:

Annual maturities of bonds as of March 31, 2018, for the next five years
were as follows:

Thousands of

Year Ending March 31 Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2019, i ¥ — $ —
2020, .0 31,881 300,000
20271 5,000 47,050
2022, — —
2023, — —
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13. RETIREMENT AND PENSION PLANS

(1) Outline of the adopted retirement benefit plans

The Company’s banking subsidiary, Joyo, and its consolidated subsidiaries have
adopted defined employees’ retirement benefit plans, i.e., the employees’ welfare
pension fund supplemented by the employees’ public pension system and lump-
sum retirement benefits.

In addition, extra benefits that are excluded from the projected benefit obli-
gation in employees’ retirement benefits accounting may be paid on a case-by-
case basis. Joyo has established an employees’ retirement benefit trust.

The Company’s banking subsidiary, Ashikaga Bank, Ltd. (“Ashikaga”), and
its consolidated subsidiaries have adopted funded and unfunded defined benefit
plans as well as defined contribution plans to provide for the employees’ retire-
ment benefits. All of the retirement benefit plans are managed in an integrated
manner through retirement benefit points that are determined based on years of
service and capabilities of employees, as well as employee performance evalua-
tion. The determined points are then allocated to each plan.

The defined benefit pension plans (funded plans) have introduced pension
plans similar to cash balance plan-type pension plans. Under the plan, each par-
ticipant will set up a virtual individual account where pension or lump-sum pay-
ments will be made based on the accumulated retirement benefit points
allocated. A retirement benefit trust is established for this defined benefit pension
plan.

Under the lump-sum retirement benefit plans (unfunded plans that have be-
come funded plans due to the establishment of a retirement benefit trust), lump-
sum payments are made based on the accumulated retirement benefit points
allocated. In some cases, premium severance payments may be made to em-
ployees in conjunction with the employees’ retirement, etc.

Under the defined contribution plans, the contribution amount is decided
based on the accumulated retirement benefit points allocated.

The Company’s consolidated subsidiaries are members of the defined bene-
fit pension funds under the multiemployer plans, and as the amount of plan as-
sets corresponding to the contribution of each subsidiary may be reasonably
calculated, such information is included in the notes to defined benefit plans.

Regarding the lump-sum retirement benefit plans adopted by certain con-
solidated subsidiaries, liability for retirement benefits and retirement benefit ex-
penses are calculated by the simplified method.

(2) Defined benefit plans
(a) The changes in defined benefit obligation for the years ended March 31, 2018
and 2017, were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2018 2017 2018

Balance at beginning of year............... ¥117,530 ¥76,181  $1,105,962
Increase due to share exchange...... — 42,016 —
Current Service Cost...........coovvvnn. 3,531 2,767 33,236
INterest COSt......vvvvvvevriiiiien 615 387 5,788
Actuarial l0SSES.........cevievenaan. 3,262 651 30,701
Benefits paid..........cccoovrvvivinennn (6,077) (4,493) (57,190)
Past service Cost ..........oovivniinnn —_ — —
Others ...cevvieceeeeceees 39 18 371
Balance at end of year...............ccco..... ¥118,902 ¥117,530  $1,118,869

*Figures above exclude retirement and benefit plans calculated by the simplified method.



(b) The changes in plan assets for the years ended March 31, 2018 and 2017,
were as follows:
Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2018 2017 2018

Balance at beginning of year............... ¥122190 ¥61,303  $1,149,809
Increase due to share exchange ..... —_ 54,330 —_
Expected return on plan assets....... 2,794 1,813 26,300
Actuarial gains ..........ccccocviviiririnnns 4,301 4,495 40,473
Contributions from the employer..... 3,916 3,038 36,858
Benefits paid.............cocccceeiriinnn, (3,591) (2,810) (33,793)
OtherS c.cvcvveeeeeeeee e 39 18 3N
Balance at end of year........................ ¥129,651 ¥122,190  $1,220,017

*Figures above exclude retirement and benefit plans calculated by the simplified method.

(c) The changes in liability for retirement benefits adopting the simplified method
for the years ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2018 2017 2018

Balance at beginning of year............... ¥1,280 ¥ 598 $12,046
Increase due to the share exchange.... —_ 620 —_
Retirement benefit expense ................ 455 454 4,283
Benefits paid ..., (111) (67) (1,048)
Contribution to the defined benefit

PENSION PIAN ... (289) (325) (2,721)
Balance at end of year........................ ¥1,334 ¥1,280 $12,561

(d) Reconciliation between the liability recorded in the consolidated balance sheet
and the balances of defined benefit obligation and plan assets was as follows:
Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2018 2017 2018
Funded defined benefit obligation........ ¥126,787 ¥125279  $1,193,068
Plan @ssets.......ccocovviiiiiniiican, (136,201) (128,658)  (1,281,655)
TOtal v (9,414) (3,379) (88,588)
Unfunded defined benefit obligation .... — — —
Net asset arising from defined benefit
0bligation ........covvveviciee ¥ (9414) ¥(3379 $ (88,588)
Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2018 2017 2018
Liability for retirement benefits............. ¥ 6,014 ¥ 8,896 $ 56,594
Asset for retirement benefits............... (15,428) (12,275) (145,181)
Net asset arising from defined benefit
OblGAtIoN ... ¥(9,414) ¥(3,379  $(88,588)

*Figures above include retirement and benefit plans calculated by the simplified method.

(e) The components of net periodic benefit costs for the years ended March 31,
2018 and 2017, were as follows:
Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2018 2017 2018

SEIVICE COSE...vviviiiiiiieeccee ¥3,531 ¥2,767 $33,236

INterest CoSt........ovvvviviiiiiieiiieis 615 387 5,788

Expected return on plan assets............ (2,794) (1,813 (26,300)

Recognized actuarial losses................ 2,960 3,688 27,856

Amortization of prior service cost ........ — — —_
Retirement benefit expense calculated

by the simplified method 455 454 4,283

OtherS...cvevvveceeie e . (16) 9 (154)

Net periodic benefit costs ¥4,751 ¥5,475 $44,710

(f) Amounts recognized in other comprehensive income (before income tax effect)
in respect of defined retirement benefit plans for the years ended March 31,
2018 and 2017, were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2018 2017 2018
PriOr SEIVICE COSt ......vvveveeverreeeee ¥ — ¥ — $ —
Actuarial l0SSeS .........cccovvvevevereiiinns (4,021) (7,532) (37,844)
TOtAl oo ¥(4,021) ¥(7,532) $(37,844)

(9) Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income (before in-
come tax effect) in respect of defined retirement benefit plans as of March
31,2018 and 2017, were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2018 2017 2018
Unrecognized prior service cost........... ¥ — ¥ — $ —
Unrecognized actuarial losses.............. 1,285 7,815 12,094
TOtAl oo ¥1,285 ¥7,815 $12,094

(h) Plan assets
a. Components of plan assets
Plan assets as of March 31, 2018 and 2017, consisted of the following:

2018 2017
Debt INVESIMENTS ... 48.8% 47.9%
EQUity INVESIMENTS ..o 31.8% 31.7%
GENeral @CCOUNES .......vvvveveveiirceee s 12.2% 12.6%
ONBTS oo 7.2% 7.8%
TOMAl oo 100.0%  100.0%

* As of March 31, 2018 and 2017, total plan assets that were set up on corporate pension
plans include a retirement benefit trust of 21.3% and 20.9%.

b. Method of determining the expected rate of return on plan assets

The expected rate of return on plan assets is determined considering the long-
term rates of return which are expected currently and in the future from the vari-
ous components of the plan assets.

(i) Assumptions used for the years ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, were set
forth as follows:

2018 2017
DiSCOUNT FALE ..o 0.20% — 0.57% 0.20% — 0.57%
Expected rate of return on plan assets....... 2.50% — 3.30% 2.50% — 3.30%
Expected rate of increase in salary ............ 4.57% — 9.00% 4.63% — 9.00%

(3) Defined contribution plans

The amounts of the required contribution to the defined contribution plans of cer-
tain consolidated subsidiaries were ¥750 million ($7,065 thousand) and ¥598
million as of March 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.
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14. EQUITY

Japanese companies are subject to the Companies Act. The significant provi-
sions in the Companies Act that affect financial and accounting matters are sum-
marized below:

a. Dividends

Under the Companies Act, companies can pay dividends at any time during the
fiscal year in addition to the year-end dividend upon resolution at the share-
holders’ meeting. Additionally, for companies that meet certain criteria includ-
ing (1) having a Board of Directors, (2) having independent auditors, (3) having
an Audit & Supervisory Board, and (4) the term of service of the directors being
prescribed as one year rather than the normal two-year term by its articles of
incorporation, the Board of Directors may declare dividends (except for divi-
dends-in-kind) at any time during the fiscal year if the company has prescribed
S0 in its articles of incorporation. With respect to the third condition above, the
Board of Directors of companies with (a) board committees (namely, appoint-
ment committee, compensation committee and audit committee) or (b) an audit
and supervisory committee (as implemented under the Companies Act effective
May 1, 2015) may also declare dividends at any time because such compa-
nies, by nature, meet the criteria under the Companies Act. The Company is
organized as a company with an audit and supervisory committee. The Compa-
ny meets all the above criteria, and accordingly, the Board of Directors may
declare dividends (except for dividends-in-kind) at any time during the fiscal
year.

The Companies Act permits companies to distribute dividends-in-kind (non-
cash assets) to shareholders subject to certain limitations and additional require-
ments.

Semiannual interim dividends may also be paid once a year upon resolution
by the Board of Directors if the articles of incorporation of the company so stipu-
late. The Companies Act provides certain limitations on the amounts available for
dividends or the purchase of treasury stock. The limitation is defined as the
amount available for distribution to the shareholders, but the amount of equity
after dividends must be maintained at no less than ¥3 million.

(1) Capital Stock Changes during the Year

b. Increases/Decreases and Transfer of Common Stock, Reserve, and
Surplus
The Companies Act requires that an amount equal to 10% of dividends must be
appropriated as a legal reserve (@ component of retained earnings) or as addi-
tional paid-in capital (a component of capital surplus) depending on the equity
account that was charged upon the payment of such dividends until the aggre-
gate amount of the legal reserve and additional paid-in capital equals 25% of
capital stock. Under the Companies Act, the total amount of additional paid-in
capital and legal reserve may be reversed without limitation. The Companies Act
also provides that capital stock, legal reserve, additional paid-in capital, other
capital surplus, and retained earnings can be transferred among the accounts
within equity under certain conditions upon resolution of the shareholders.

c. Treasury Stock and Treasury Stock Acquisition Rights

The Companies Act also provides for companies to purchase treasury stock and
dispose of such treasury stock by resolution of the Board of Directors. The
amount of treasury stock purchased cannot exceed the amount available for dis-
tribution to the shareholders which is determined by a specific formula. Under
the Companies Act, stock acquisition rights are presented as a separate compo-
nent of equity. The Companies Act also provides that companies can purchase
both treasury stock acquisition rights and treasury stock. Such treasury stock ac-
quisition rights are presented as a separate component of equity or deducted di-
rectly from stock acquisition rights.

The changes in the number and class of issued stock and treasury stock for the year ended March 31, 2018, were as follows:

Shares in Thousands

Changes During the Year
As of April 1, 2017 Increase Decrease As of March 31,2018
Issued stock:
Common stock 1,179,055 — — 1,179,055
Total 1,179,055 — — 1,179,055
Treasury stock
Common stock 1,303 5 125% 1,183
Total 1,303 5 125 1,183

*1 The number of shares of treasury stock increased by 5 thousand shares due to purchases of shares less than the trading unit.
*2 The number of shares of treasury stock decreased by 3 thousand shares due to sales to shareholders in response to their demand to buy additional shares up to the trading unit and by 122

thousand shares due to exercise of the stock acquisition rights.

The changes in the number and class of issued stock and treasury stock for the year ended March 31, 2017, were as follows:

Shares in Thousands

Changes During the Year
As of April 1,2016 Increase Decrease As of March 31,2017
Issued stock:
Common stock 333,250 845,805 — 1,179,055
Total 333,250 845,805 — 1,179,055
Treasury stock:
Common stock — 1,306* K 1,303
Total — 1,306 3 1,303

*1 845,805 thousand shares are issued due to the share exchange with Joyo on October 1, 2016.

*2 The number of shares of treasury stocks increased by 1,290 thousand shares due to a dividend-in-kind from a subsidiary and by 16 thousand shares due to purchases of shares less than the

trading unit.

*3 The number of shares of treasury stock decreased by 3 thousand shares due to sales to shareholders in response to their demand to buy additional shares up to the trading unit.
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(2) Cash Dividends Per Share

Cash dividends per share for the years ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, were as follows:
Year ended March 31, 2018

Dividends paid in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2018

Total Amount
(Millions of Yen

/Thousands of Per Share Amount
Cash dividends approved at the Board of Directors’ meeting held on May 12, 2017: U.S. Dollars) (Yen /US. Dollars) Dividend Record Date  Effective Date
Common stock ¥7,655 ¥6.50*
($72,037) ($0.06) Mar. 31, 2017 Jun. 5, 2017
Total Amount
(Millions of Yen
/Thousands of Per Share Amount
Cash dividends approved at the Board of Directors’ meeting held on Nov. 13, 2017: U.S. Dollars) (Yen /US. Dollars)  Dividend Record Date  Effective Date
Common stock ¥6,478 ¥5.50
($60,961) ($0.05) Sep. 30, 2017 Dec. 4, 2017

* Of the per share amount above, ¥1.00 ($0.01) is the amount of a commemorative dividend for the business integration.

Dividends to be paid after March 31, 2018

Total Amount
(Millions of Yen

/Thousands of Per Share Amount
Cash dividends approved at the Board of Directors’ meeting held on May 11, 2018: U.S. Dollars) (Yen /US. Dollars) - Dividend Record Date  Effective Date
Common stock ¥6,478 ¥5.50
($60,961) ($0.05) Mar. 31,2018 Jun. 4,2018

Year ended March 31, 2017:

Dividends paid in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2017

The amounts of dividends below were paid to shareholders recorded in the register of shareholders of the Company (formerly Ashikaga Holdings, Co., Ltd.) at market clos-
ing time on March 31, 2016, or September 30, 2016.

Total Amount

Per Share Amount

Cash dividends approved at the Board of Directors’ meeting held on May 13, 2016: (Millions of Yen) (Yen) Dividend Record Date  Effective Date

Common stock ¥1,499* ¥4.50 Mar. 31, 2016 Jun. 8, 2016
Total Amount Per Share Amount

Cash dividends approved at the Board of Directors’ meeting held on Nov. 14, 2016: (Millions of Yen) (Yen) Dividend Record Date  Effective Date

Common stock ¥1,832 ¥5.50 Sep. 30, 2016 Dec. 2, 2016

* Being paid by the Company before the business integration, the dividend whose record date is March 31, 2017, which is before the share exchange, is not included in the changes in sharehold-
ers’ equity.

The Company conducted a share exchange whereby the Company became the wholly-owning parent company and Joyo became the wholly-owned subsidiary of the Com-
pany on October 1, 2016. In regard to the following dividend amount, the dividend payment resolved at Joyo’s ordinary general meeting of shareholders were paid by Joyo
to the shareholders recorded in the register of shareholders of Joyo at market closing time on March 31, 2016, and so the amount approved at Joyo’s board meeting was
paid to those who were on the record as shareholders of Joyo at market closing time on September 30, 2016.

Total Amount Per Share Amount

Cash dividends approved at the Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders held on June 28, 2016: (Millions of Yen) (Yen) Dividend Record Date  Effective Date
Common stock ¥5,060 ¥7.00 Mar. 31, 2016 Jun. 29,2016
Total Amount Per Share Amount
Cash dividends approved at the Board of Directors’ meeting held on Nov. 7, 2016: (Millions of Yen) (Yen) Dividend Record Date  Effective Date
Common stock ¥4,337 ¥6.00 Sep. 30, 2016 Dec. 2, 2016
Dividends to be paid after March 31, 2017
Total Amount Per Share Amount
Cash dividends approved at the Board of Directors’ meeting held on May 12, 2017: (Millions of Yen) (Yen) Dividend Record Date  Effective Date
Common stock ¥7,655 ¥6.50" Mar. 31, 2017 Jun. 5,2017

* Of the per share amount above, ¥1.00 is the amount of a commemorative dividend for the business integration.
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15. STOCK OPTIONS

The Company’s stock option plans grant options to directors and others to purchase certain shares of the Company’s common stock in the respective exercise periods.
The Company recorded stock option expenses in “General and administrative expenses” of ¥74 million ($698 thousand) and ¥83 million for the fiscal years ended
March 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

The stock options outstanding as of March 31, 2018, were as follows:

Number of Options Exercise

Stock Options Persons Granted Granted (Shares) Date of Grant Price Exercise Period
Mebuki Financial Group, Inc.
1st Series of Stock 10 directors of Joyo*? 16,833 August 24, 2009*° ¥ Frt%mAl(J)cltJZtt)%r41 2%%196
Acquisition Rights*' Y :
Mebuki Financial Group, Inc.
2nd Series of Stock 10 directors of Joyo™ 23634 duy21,2010°  y  FromQcioberd 2016
Acquisition Rights*’ y 21,
Mebuki Financial Group, Inc.
3rd Series of Stock 10 directors of Joyo*? 43,430 July 20, 2011** ¥ Frog 5)uc|tot2)%r 120%?1 6,
Acquisition Rights*’ y <0,
Mebuki Financial Group, Inc.
5th Series of Stock 10 directors of Joyo™ 42024 Juy19,2012° o FromOcioberd 2016
Acquisition Rights*' V1%,
Mebuki Financial Group, Inc. . '
6th Series of Stock 10 execyve oficers 5080 Juy19,2012¢  y o Cctoberd, 201G,
Acquisition Rights*' of Joyo 0 July 19,
Mebuki Financial Group, Inc.
7th Series of Stock 10 directors of Joyo™ 30241 duy18,2013°  yy  FromQcioberd 201
Acquisition Rights*' v 1e,
Mebuki Financial Group, Inc. . '
8th Series of Stock 15 execyve oficers 12428 Juyis 2013 yp  FromCtoberd 2016,
Acquisition Rights*' of Joyo 0 July 1o,
Mebuki Financial Group, Inc.
9th Series of Stock 10 directors of Joyo™ 40656 Juy18,2014° oy FromOcioberd 20T
Acquisition Rights*’ v 16,
Mebuki Financial Group, Inc. . '
10th Series of Stock 1 execyve oficers 16040 Juy18 2014 vy From Octoberd 2016,
Acquisition Rights*’ of Joyo 0 July 18,
Mebuki Financial Group, Inc.
11th Series of Stock 10 directors of Joyo* 40041 Juyi7,2015° o FromOcioberd 2076
Acquisition Rights*' 7
Mebuki Financial Group, Inc. . )

) e 13 executive officers 3 From October 1, 2016,
;{%[Etss*?rles of Stock Acquisition of Joyo*2 22,830 July 17, 2015 ¥ 0 July 17, 2045
Mebuki Financial Group, Inc. ’

) ’ 29 directors of From December 7, 2016,
lgazg%réis%ﬁgm the Company, Joyo and Ashikaga 142176 December 6, 2016 ¥ to December 6, 2046
Mebuki Financial Group, Inc. . )
14th Series of Stock 10 execuve oficers 63910  December6,2016 i 'ov.Decerber 7, 2016,
Acquisition Rights of Joyo 0 Lecember o,
Mebuki Financial Group, Inc. A

) ’ 29 directors of From August 10, 2017,
lgazg%r;s%ﬁgm the Company, Joyo and Ashikaga 135,990 August 9, 2017 ¥ to August 9, 2047
Mebuki Financial Group, Inc.
16th Series of Stock 16 executive officers of Joyo 62024 Augusto,2017 v oM AuOusLIO 2017,
Acquisition Rights Y '

6 directors and executive officers of the company From March 2. 2011
2009 Stock Option 10 directors and executive officers of Ashikaga 2,684,900 March 2, 2009 ¥550 to December 3’1 201é
1,848 employees of Ashikaga '
6 directors and executive officers of the company
2010 Stock Option 10 directors and executive officers of Ashikaga ~~ 2,698700  January 4,2010 Y550 oM January 4,2012,

1,878 employees of Ashikaga

to December 31,2018

*1 As a result of the share exchange conducted between the Company and Joyo on October 1, 2016, stock acquisition rights of the Company were allotted to the holders of stock acquisition
rights of Joyo based on the share exchange ratio.

*2 The number is initially granted by Joyo.

*3 The date is initially granted by Joyo.
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The stock option activity was as follows:

Mebuki FG Mebuki FG Mebuki FG Mebuki FG
1st 2nd 3rd 5th
Year ended March 31, 2018
Non-vested (shares):

April 1, 2017 — Outstanding 16,833 23,634 43,430 42,024
Granted — — — —
Canceled — — — —
Vested — — 7,488 7,245

March 31, 2018 — Outstanding 16,833 23,634 35,942 34,779

Vested (shares):

April 1, 2017 — Outstanding — — — —
Vested — — 7,488 7,245
Exercised — — 7,488 7,245
Canceled — — — —

March 31, 2018 — Outstanding — — — —

Excise price ¥ ¥ ¥1 ¥1
(Yen / US Dollars) $0.01 $0.01 $0.01 $0.01
Average stock price at exercise — — ¥421 ¥421
(Yen/ US Dollars) — — $3.96 $3.96
Fair value price at grant date ¥a17 ¥297 ¥300 ¥310
(Yen / US Dollars) $3.92 $2.79 $2.82 $2.92
Mebuki FG Mebuki FG Mebuki FG Mebuki FG
6th 7th 8th oth

Year ended March 31, 2018

Non-vested (shares):

April 1, 2017 — Outstanding 5,089 39,241 12,428 40,656
Granted — — — —
Canceled — — — —
Vested 5,089 8,672 9,321 8,984

March 31, 2018 — Qutstanding — 30,569 3,107 31,672

Vested (shares):

April 1, 2017 — Outstanding — — — —
Vested 5,089 8,672 9,321 8,984
Exercised 5,089 8,672 9,321 8,984
Canceled — — — —

March 31, 2018 — Outstanding — — — —

Excise price ¥ ¥ ¥1 ¥1
(Yen / US Dollars) $0.01 $0.01 $0.01 $0.01
Average stock price at exercise ¥421 ¥421 ¥421 ¥421
(Yen / US Dollars) $3.96 $3.96 $3.96 $3.96
Fair value price at grant date ¥331 ¥518 ¥542 ¥500
(Yen / US Dollars) $3.11 $4.87 $5.10 $4.70
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Mebuki FG Mebuki FG Mebuki FG Mebuki FG

10th 11th 12th 13th
Year ended March 31, 2018
Non-vested (shares):

April 1, 2017 — Outstanding 16,040 40,041 22,830 142,176
Granted — — — —
Canceled — — — —
Vested 9,624 9,906 10,464 29,945

March 31, 2018 — Outstanding 6,416 30,135 12,366 112,231

Vested (shares):

April 1, 2017 — Outstanding — — — —
Vested 9,624 9,906 10,464 29,945
Exercised 9,624 9,906 10,464 29,945
Canceled — — — —

March 31, 2018 — Outstanding — — — —

Excise price ¥ ¥1 ¥ ¥
(Yen / US Dollars) $0.01 $0.01 $0.01 $0.01
Average stock price at exercise ¥421 ¥421 ¥421 ¥421
(Yen / US Dollars) $3.96 $3.96 $3.96 $3.96
Fair value price at grant date ¥525 ¥680 ¥708 ¥345
(Yen / US Dollars) $4.94 $6.40 $6.66 $3.25
Mebuki FG Mebuki FG Mebuki FG
14th 15th 16th
Year ended March 31, 2018
Non-vested (shares):
April 1, 2017 — Outstanding 63,910 — —
Granted — 135,990 62,024
Canceled — — —
Vested 16,170 — —
March 31, 2018 — Qutstanding 47,740 135,990 62,024
Vested (shares):
April 1, 2017 — Outstanding — — —
Vested 16,170 — —
Exercised 16,170 — —
Canceled — — —
March 31, 2018 — Outstanding — — —
Excise price ¥ ¥1 ¥1
(Yen / US Dollars) $0.01 $0.01 $0.01
Average stock price at exercise ¥421 — —
(Yen/ US Dollars) $3.96 — —
Fair value price at grant date ¥374 ¥360 ¥390
(Yen / US Dollars) $3.52 $3.39 $3.67
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2009 Stock
Option

2010 Stock
Option

Year ended March 31, 2018
Non-vested (shares):
April 1, 2017 — Outstanding
Granted
Canceled
Vested
March 31, 2018 — Outstanding

Vested (shares):
April 1, 2017 — Outstanding
Vested
Exercised
Canceled
March 31, 2018 — Outstanding

Excise price

(Yen / US Dollars)

Average stock price at exercise
(Yen / US Dollars)

Fair value price at grant date
(Yen / US Dollars)

The Assumptions Used to Measure Fair Value of Stock Option

1,856,600

62,800

1,793,800

1,929,700

61,100

1,868,600

Stock options received from Joyo and issued by the Company were valued using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model and the following principal parameters:

Mebuki FG Mebuki FG Mebuki FG Mebuki FG
1st 2nd 3rd 5th
Volatility of stock price*": 33.93% 33.00% 34.16% 32.54%
Estimated remaining outstanding period*?: 6 years 6 years 6 years 6 years
Estimated dividend*3: ¥8 per share ¥8 per share ¥8 per share ¥8 per share
Risk free interest rate**: 0.76% 0.45% 0.48% 0.26%
Mebuki FG Mebuki FG Mebuki FG Mebuki FG
6th 7th 8th 9th
Volatility of stock price*": 24.41% 33.56% 27.19% 30.90%
Estimated remaining outstanding period*?: 3 years 6 years 3 years 6 years
Estimated dividend*3: ¥8 per share ¥8.5 per share ¥8.5 per share ¥9 per share
Risk free interest rate**: 0.10% 0.38% 0.14% 0.19%
Mebuki FG Mebuki FG Mebuki FG
10th 11th 12th
Volatility of stock price*": 25.77% 25.64% 26.72%
Estimated remaining outstanding period*?: 3 years 6 years 3 years
Estimated dividend*3: ¥9 per share ¥10 per share ¥10 per share
Risk free interest rate**: 0.08% 0.14% 0.03%
Mebuki FG Mebuki FG
13th 14th
Volatility of stock price*®: 29.13% 30.89%
Estimated remaining outstanding period*®: 6 years 3 years
Estimated dividend*7: ¥11 per share ¥11 per share
Risk free interest rate*: (0.08)% (0.15)%
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Mebuki FG Mebuki FG
15th 16th
Volatility of stock price*®: 28.36% 29.44%
Estimated remaining outstanding period*: 6 years 3 years
Estimated dividend*e: ¥11 per share ¥11 per share
Risk free interest rate*?: (0.03)% 0.07)%

*1. Volatility of stock price is calculated based on the actual stock price of Joyo during the period below.
Mebuki FG 1st : From August 22, 2003, to August 21, 2009
Mebuki FG 2nd : From July 21, 2004, to July 20, 2010
Mebuki FG 3rd  : From July 20, 2005, to July 19, 2011
Mebuki FG 5th  : From July 19, 2006, to July 18, 2012
Mebuki FG 6th  : From July 21, 2009, to July 18, 2012
Mebuki FG 7th  : From July 18, 2007, to July 17,2013
Mebuki FG 8th : From July 20, 2010, to July 17,2013
Mebuki FG 9th  : From July 18, 2008, to July 17, 2014
Mebuki FG 10th : From July 19, 2011, to July 17, 2014
Mebuki FG 11th : From July 17, 2009, to July 16, 2015
Mebuki FG 12th : From July 17, 2012, to July 16, 2015
*2. Estimated remaining outstanding period is calculated based on average tenure of retired directors and executive officers of Joyo
*3. Actual dividend payments conducted by Joyo just before each stock option was issued
*4. Yield of Japanese government bonds approximating the estimated remaining outstanding period at the time when Joyo issued each stock option
*5. Volatility of stock price is calculated based on the actual stock price of the Company during the period. Only a short time has passed since the business combination was conducted through a
share exchange between the Company and Joyo, during the period before the business combination was completed, volatility of stock price was calculated based on the actual stock price of a
similar publicly traded company.
Mebuki FG 13th : From December 6, 2010 to December 5, 2016
Mebuki FG 14th : From December 6, 2013 to December 5, 2016
Mebuki FG 15th : From August 9, 2011 to August 8, 2017
Mebuki FG 16th : From August 9, 2014 to August 8, 2017
*6. Estimated remaining outstanding period is calculated based on average tenure of retired directors of the Company, Joyo, and Ashikaga, and executive officers of Joyo.
*7. Estimated dividend paid in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2017 (excluding a commemorative dividend)
*8. Actual dividend payments (excluding a commemorative dividend) conducted by the company just before each stock option was issued.
*9. Yield of Japanese government bonds approximating the estimated remaining outstanding period at the time when the Company issued each stock option

The Method Used to Estimate the Number of Stock Options Expected to Vest

Since it is difficult to rationally estimate the number of unexercised options in the future, a method of only reflecting actual unexercised options is adopted.

(2009 Stock Option and 2010 Stock Option)

As the Company was an unlisted company when stock option rights were granted, they were measured at their intrinsic value because the fair value of stock options can-
not be reliably estimated. The Company does not recognize relevant expenses since their fair value on the date of grant was zero. The amounts of their intrinsic value as
of March 31, 2018, were nil.

16. PER SHARE OF COMMON STOCK
(1) Net income per share

(2) Total equity per share
Total equity per share as of March 31, 2018 and 2017, was as follows:

Reconciliation of the differences between basic and diluted net income per share Yen U.S. Dollars
(“EPS”) for the years ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, was as follows: 2018 2017 2018
Millions of ~ Thousands of Total equity per share.............ccceenne ¥753.83 ¥732.66 $7.09
Yen Shares Yen U.S. Dollars
Net Income . .
Attributable ~ Weighted- Total equity per share as of March 31, 2018 and 2017, is calculated based on
toOwnersof  Average the following:
the Parent Shares EPS " eof
ousandas o
Yealr Ended March 31, 2018 Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
BSSITQ EPS — e 2018 2017 2018
et income available to -
common shereholders ......... ¥ 43,069 1,177,843 ¥ 3656 _ $034 g"t;' e‘,‘“'t‘/'f' """""" RO ¥888';?Z ¥863’?SS $8'35Z'§§§
Effect of dilutive securities: € uctms rom f0tal equity ... :
Total equity attributable
WAITANES oo = 4 = = to common shareholders.................. ¥887,923 ¥862,892  $8,355,351
Diluted EPS —
Net income )
Or COMPUEAHON v vrercrvee ¥ 43069 1,178,385 ¥ 3654  $0.34 Number of Shares in Thousands
2018 2017
Number of shares of common stock used in
Year Ended March 31, 2017 computing total equity per
Basic EPS — Share at Year-end...........ccoeeeeniiieeeeiicieeeins 1,177,872 1,177,751
Net income available
to common shareholders........ ¥158,455 1,010,667 ¥156.78
Effect of dilutive securities....... — 380 —
Diluted EPS —
Net income
for computation.............c........ ¥158,455 1,011,047 ¥156.72
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17. OTHER INCOME
Other income for the years ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, consisted of the
following:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2018 2017 2018

Gain on sales of stock and
other Securities ........coceevvveirveiriinenn, ¥13,078  ¥9,902 $123,073
Recoveries of write-off claims............. 2,088 2,688 19,649
Gain on disposal of fixed assets........... 942 6 8,871
OheT v 27,498 23,718 258,765
TOtal coovvicccee e, ¥43,608 ¥36,316 $410,358

18. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
General and administrative expenses for the years ended March 31, 2018 and
2017, consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2018 2017 2018
¥ 52,841 ¥42922 $ 497,236
5,402 5,956 50,839
. 62,183 49,209 585,143
¥120,427 ¥98,088  $1,133,218

19. OTHER EXPENSES
Other expenses for the years ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, consisted of the
following:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2018 2017 2018

Loss on sales of stocks and other
SECUMHES ... ¥ 5366 Y 2211 $ 50,502
Write-off amount of loans................... 4,517 3,940 42,509
Impairment 10SSeS™ .......oovvvveviirinan. 1,813 1,463 17,061
Loss on disposal of fixed assets.......... 312 438 2,942
OthET o 25,329 23,354 238,351
TOtAl e ¥37,339  ¥31,407 $351,365

* Impairment losses on long-lived assets were recognized mainly on the properties of the
Bank’s branches in Tochigi and Ibaraki prefecture, which were decided to be closed, as in-
vestments could not be recovered. The components of impairment losses by fixed assets
for the years ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2018 2017 2018
¥811 ¥470 $7,635
Buildings . 485 198 4,564
Software 383 324 3,607
Equipment 84 266 797
Leasehold 48 202 457

20. INCOME TAXES
The Group is subject to Japanese national and local income taxes which, in the
aggregate, resulted in a normal effective statutory tax rate of 30.86% for the
years ended March 31, 2018 and 2017.

The tax effects of significant temporary differences and loss carry forwards
which result in deferred tax assets and liabilities as of March 31, 2018 and
2017, were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2018 2017 2018
Deferred tax assets:
Allowance for loan losses............... ¥27,445 ¥29,004 $ 258,262
Write-offs of securities.................. 12,920 13,217 121,586
Liability for retirement benefits ....... 11,092 12,832 104,383
Provision for employee bonuses ..... 1,822 1,758 17,153
Tax loss carryforwards................... 1,647 1,779 15,508
Depreciation..........cccccovveeiveeiiennn, 1,251 1,104 1,777
Provision for reimbursement of
AEPOSIES ..o 1,149 1,058 10,821
Other ..o 9,332 9,783 87,814
Subtotal deferred tax assets....... 66,663 70,538 627,304
Less valuation allowance................ (18,212)  (18,485) (171,380)
Total deferred tax assets ........... 48,450 52,053 455,923
Deferred tax liabilities: — — —
Unrealized gains on available-
for-sale Securities ...........cooevernnn (63,777)  (69,694) (600,146)
Retirement benefit trust (4,467) (4,467) (42,040)
Other ..o (6,875) (7,692) (64,700)
Total deferred tax liabilities ........ (75,120) (81,854) (706,886)
Net deferred tax liabilities ................... ¥(26,669) ¥(29,800)  $(250,963)

A reconciliation between the normal effective statutory tax rate and the ac-
tual effective tax rate reflected in the accompanying consolidated statement of
income for the year ended March 31, 2018, with the corresponding figures for
2017, was as follows:

2018 2017
Normal effective statutory tax rate................ocoevevee —_ 30.86%
Gain on negative goodWill............ccoveeieiiiiicninns — (21.71)

Change in valuation allowance...............c.ccocoeevennnn — (2.67)

Dividends exempted from taxation... — (0.27)
Expenses that are not deductible

for iNCOME tax PUIPOSES......vvvvevrrrereieeieirieieieiias —_ 0.05
Other — NBt.....oeieeic —_ 0.18
Actual effective tax rate ..........ocovvvvrinricsicncne — 6.44%

Since the difference between the legally effective tax rate and the actual ef-
fective tax rate after applying tax effect accounting is equal to or less than 5% of
the legally effective tax rate, notes for the year ended March 31, 2018, are omit-
ted.
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21.LEASES
Future minimum payments under noncancelable operating leases as of March
31,2018 and 2017, were as follows:

Lessee
Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2018 2017 2018
Due within one year ............cccovvvene. ¥183 ¥ 69 $1,731
Due after one year ...........cccoeevvnnn. 187 156 1,762
Total v ¥371 ¥226 $3,493
Lessor
Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2018 2017 2018
¥2 ¥ $21
3 3 33
¥5 ¥5 $54

22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES
(1) Group Policies for Financial Instruments
The Group provides financial services, centering on banking. As the central busi-
ness operation of the Group, the consolidated banking subsidiaries raise funds by
deposits as its basic function as a bank; the consolidated banking subsidiaries
also procure funds by call money transactions from short-term markets to main-
tain an adequate degree of liquidity. The consolidated banking subsidiaries man-
age those funds through lending to corporate customers and individuals, such as
housing loans, investing in securities, mainly bonds, and investing in money
markets.

The Group utilizes Asset Liability Management (ALM) to avoid unfavorable
floating interest rate fluctuation of the financial assets and liabilities it holds. As a
part of ALM, the Group has entered into derivative transactions.

(2) Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments

The Group’s financial assets are mainly loans made by the consolidated banking
subsidiaries to domestic corporations and individuals in Japan, which are ex-
posed not only to interest rate fluctuation risks, but also to customers’ credit
risks. Securities and investment securities, such as bonds, stocks, and invest-
ment trusts, are possessed to trade, to hold to maturity dates to generate stable
interest income, and to promote business relationships with the issuers. These
securities are exposed to the issuers’ credit risks, interest rate fluctuation risks,
and market price fluctuation risks.

The Group’s main financial liabilities are deposits received by the consoli-
dated baking subsidiaries, which are exposed to interest rate fluctuation risks
and liquidity risks. Borrowed money and bonds are exposed to the risks that the
Group may not be able to repay them on their maturity dates if, under certain cir-
cumstances, the Group is not able to access a capital market.

The consolidated banking subsidiaries utilize derivative transactions to
hedge the customers’ interest and currency risks and to control the interest rate
fluctuation risks in ALM. Derivatives transactions are utilized to hedge interest
rate fluctuation risks, foreign currency exchange rate fluctuation risks, and mar-
ket price fluctuation risks on the Group’s financial assets and liabilities. Deriva-
tives mainly include interest rate swaps, currency swaps, and bond futures, and
are exposed to the interest rate fluctuation risks, market price fluctuation risks,
foreign currency exchange rate fluctuation risks, and credit risks.

Hedge accounting is applied to certain derivatives.

In hedge transactions against foreign currency fluctuation risks, mainly cur-
rency swaps and foreign exchange swaps, the effectiveness of hedging is deter-
mined by confirming the amount of the hedging instruments is generally
consistent with that of the hedged items. Regarding an exceptional accounting
treatment in interest rate swaps, post testing is conducted to confirm that re-
quirements for the treatment are satisfied.

49  Mebuki Financial Group, Inc.

Derivatives transactions to which hedge accounting is not applied are ex-
posed to interest rate fluctuation risks, foreign currency exchange rate fluctuation
risks, price fluctuation risks, and credit risks.

(3) Risk Management for Financial Instruments

(a) Integrated Risk Management

The Group conducts integrated risk management to holistically control risks from
various financial assets and liabilities and risks related to the banking business.
More specifically, the periodically quantified risks of the Group are controlled so
as not to exceed Tier 1 capital allocated by each risk category. The bank assess-
es unquantifiable risks using stress tests and other measures.

(b) Credit Risk Management

The group has enacted “Group Guidelines for Credit Risk Management,” which
provides for basic policies comprising appropriate credit exposure management
on individual and portfolio bases. The portfolio-based credit exposure manage-
ment involves diversification of risks.

Credit risk management divisions have been segregated from the divisions
under business headquarters to achieve rigorous credit review, and conduct
monitoring of borrowers’ financial condition to prevent deterioration of loans.

In the self-assessments that evaluate the quality of assets, the business of-
fices categorize the borrowers based on credit ratings, which are then reviewed
by credit-related divisions in the headquarters. Furthermore, audit divisions ex-
amine results and process of the self-assessments for accuracy and adequacy.

As for credit risks of the issuers of securities and the counterparties of de-
rivatives transactions, global markets and market operation divisions monitor
credit information and market prices and gives the issuers and counterparties
credit ratings as well as carry out assessments of the issuers and counterparties
like general borrowers.

(c) Market Risk Management

@ Market Risk Management Measures

The Group manages market risks by ALM. Risk management policies and proce-
dures are prescribed in relevant ALM rules and manuals, and these policies, de-
cided in ALM / Risk Management Committee and so forth, are closely monitored
and regularly discussed.

(@ Market Risk Quantitative information
(i) Banking Account
a. Interest Rate Risk
The Group adopts the variance-covariance method as the measurement method
(a holding period of six months, a confidence interval of 99%, and an observation
period of one year) for calculating VaR related to interest rate risk of loans and
bills discounted, domestic bonds, deposits, borrowed money, corporate bonds,
and derivatives such as interest rate swaps. The Group uses the historical simu-
lation method (a holding period of six months, a confidence interval of 99%, and
an observation period of five years) for the calculation of VaR related to interest
rate risk of foreign bonds, trust beneficiary right, market fund transaction, and
derivatives like interest rate swaps and currency swaps.

As of March 31, 2018 and 2017, the Group’s VaR related to interest rate
risks, which is a simple sum of its consolidated banking subsidiaries’ VaR, were
¥42 371 million ($398,720 thousand) and ¥69,256 million, respectively.

b. Price Fluctuation Risk

The Group adopts the historical simulation method (a holding period of six
months, a confidence interval of 99%, and an observation period of five years)
for calculating VaR related to price fluctuation risk of listed equities and invest-
ment trust.

As of March 31, 2018 and 2017, the Group’s VaR related to price fluctua-
tion risk, which is a simple sum of its consolidated banking subsidiaries’ VaR,
were ¥144,794 million ($1,362,512 thousand) and ¥130,317 million, respec-
tively. Correlation between interest rate risk and price fluctuation risk has not
been considered.



(ii) Trading Account

The Group adopts the historical simulation method (a holding period of 10 days,
a confidence interval of 99%, and an observation period of five years) for calcu-
lating VaR related to trading securities; trading purpose foreign exchange trans-
actions; and trading purpose derivatives, such as forward transactions and option
transactions. As of March 31, 2018 and 2017, the Group’s VaR related to trad-
ing account, which is simple sum of its consolidated banking subsidiaries’ VaR,
were ¥5 million ($55 thousand) and ¥11 million, respectively.

(iii) Validity of VaR

The Group performs back testing to compare VaR calculated by its internal mea-
surement model with the actual profit and loss to confirm whether the model
captures market risks with sufficient accuracy. However, there could be cases in
which VaR cannot capture risks under sudden and dramatic changes in market
conditions beyond normal circumstances since VaR is statistically calculated
based on historical market fluctuation.

(d) Liquidity Risk Management

Under “Group Liquidity Risk Management Rules,” the Group conducts financing
activities after fully analyzing its cash flows and strives to maintain the diversity
and stability of funding sources, while paying continuous attention to the balance
sheet structure, lines of credit provided to the Group, collateral management,
and costs to maintain the liquidity.

(4) Supplementary Explanation on Fair Values of Financial Instruments
The fair values of financial instruments are based on their market prices and, in
cases, where market prices are not readily available, reasonably calculated pric-
es. Such prices have been calculated using certain assumptions and may differ if
calculated based on different assumptions.

(5) Fair Values of Financial Instruments
(a) Fair value of financial instruments

Millions of Yen

Carrying Unrealized
March 31,2018 Amount  Fair Value Gains/Losses
(1) Cash and due from banks....................... ¥ 1,708,734 ¥ 1,708,734 ¥ —
(2) Securities:
Held-to-maturity securities...................... 154,787 154,920 133
Available-for-sale securities..................... 4,002,942 4,002,942 —
(3) Loans and bills discounted 10,497,976
Allowance for loan losses*’ (73,370)

NEt.. oo 10,424,606 10,523,344 98,738

Total assets ¥16,291,070 ¥16,389,942  ¥98,871
(1) Deposits ¥13,977,912 ¥13979,361 ¥ (1,449)
(2) Negotiable certificates of deposit............. 272,640 272,695 (55)
(3) Call money and bills 0Id ...........cccvvernee. 340,540 340,540 —
(4) Borrowed money........c.coovvevveeriniiicnnns 877,856 878,500 (644)
Total labilities ........cevierieiicccen ¥15,468,950 ¥15471,009  ¥(2,148)
Derivative instruments*? :

Hedge accounting is not applied.............. ¥ 1804 ¥ 1,804 ¥ —

Hedge accounting is applied.................... 4,634 4,634 —
Total derivative instruments ..............coevennes ¥ 6439 % 6439 ¥y —

Millions of Yen

Carrying Unrealized
March 31,2017 Amount  Fair Value Gains/Losses
(1) Cash and due from banks..........c............ ¥ 1,393,762 ¥ 1393762 ¥ —
(2) Securities:
Held-to-maturity securities..........c..o.o...... 139,385 138,705 (680)
Available-for-sale securities..................... 4,036,244 4,036,244 —
(3) Loans and bills discounted...................... 10,244,730
Allowance for loan l0sses*" ..................... (72,767)
NEL. oo 10,171,962 10,283,426 111,464
TOtAl @SSELS v ¥15,741,355 ¥15,852,138  ¥110,783
(1) DEPOSIES ... ¥13,507,047 ¥13,508,898 ¥ (1,850)
(2) Negotiable certificates of deposit............. 284705 284,757 (52
(3) Call money and bills sold ..............c......... 303312 303312 —
(4) Payables under securities lending
Transactions ..........coevevrvrieceeiieene 167,640 167,640 —
(5) Borrowed MOneY........cccovvvvreerenrennns 735,593 736,548 (955)
Total liabilities ¥14,998,299 ¥15001,158 ¥ (2,858)
Derivative instruments* :
Hedge accounting is not applied.............. ¥ 1754 ¥ 1754 ¥ —
Hedge accounting is applied.................... (475) (475) —
Total derivative instruments ..............ccccevne ¥ 1279 ¥ 12719 ¥  —

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Carrying Unrealized

March 31,2018 Amount  Fair Value Gains/Losses
(1) Cash and due from banks....................... $ 16,079,180 $ 16,079,180 $ —
(2) Securities:

Held-to-maturity securities..........c........... 1,456,550 1,457,802 1,252

Available-for-sale securities..................... 37,667,661 37,667,661 -
(3) Loans and bills discounted...................... 98,785,892

Allowance for loan losses*" .................... (690,413)

NBL. ..o 98,095,478 99,024,606 929,128

Total @SSELS ...vvviveeciieceece $153,298,870 $154,229250  $930,380
(1) DEPOSIS ..o $131,532,068 $131,545,704 $(13,636)
(2) Negotiable certificates of deposit............. 2,565,543 2,566,064 (520)
(3) Call money and bills sold ...........c.ccoouuee. 3,204,487 3,204,487 -
(4) Borrowed money .. 8260623 8,266,688 (6,065)
Total liabilities $145,562,721 $145,582,942 $ (20,221)
Derivative instruments*? :

Hedge accounting is not applied.............. $ 16984 % 16984 § —

Hedge accounting is applied.................... 43,612 43,612 —
Total derivative instruments 6059% $ 6059 $§ —

*1 Allowances for loan losses relevant to loans and bills discounted have been deducted.

*2 Derivative instruments recorded as trading assets, trading liabilities, other assets and oth-
er liabilities include derivative transactions. Derivative instruments are presented as net of
assets and liabilities associated with derivative transactions.

Assets

(1) Cash and due from banks

The fair values of these items approximate the carrying amount, which are
deemed to be the fair value.

(2) Securities

The fair values of marketable equity securities are measured at the quoted mar-
ket price of the stock exchange for equity instruments. Fair values of bonds are
measured at the market price or the quoted price obtained from financial institu-
tions. Fair values of investment trusts are measured at the quoted price.

The fair values of private placement bonds are determined by discounting
future cash flows. The discount rates used in the calculation were calculated
based on the bankruptcy probability by credit rating and the coverage ratio of
each claim.

We treat market prices as fair values for floating-rate Japanese Government
Bonds and securitized products.
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(3) Loans and bills discounted

The carrying amounts of loans and bills discounted with floating-interest rates
approximate fair value as long as customers’ credit risks have not changed sig-
nificantly after lending because the market rates are promptly reflected in the
floating interest rates.

The fair values of loans and bills discounted with fixed-interest rates are de-
termined by discounting the principal and interest amount with the interest rate
used for new loans for each category of loan calculated based on the bankruptcy
probability by credit rating and the coverage ratio of each claim, internal credit
rating, and loan period. The carrying amounts of loans and bills discounted with
maturity less than one year approximate fair value because of their short matur-
ities.

For loans to obligors classified as “legal bankruptcy,” “virtual bankruptcy,”
and “possible bankruptcy,” an allowance is provided based on the discounted
cash flow method or based on amounts expected to be collected through the
disposal of collateral or execution of guarantees. The carrying value, net of the
allowance, as of the consolidated balance sheet date is a reasonable estimate of
the fair values of those loans.

(3) Call money and bills sold
The carrying amounts of call money and bills sold approximate fair value because
they have maturities of one year or less.

(4) Payables under securities lending transactions
Refer to (3) Call money and bills sold.

(5) Borrowed Money

The fair value of borrowed money is discounted at the rate that would be applied
for similar new contracts. The carrying amount of borrowed money with maturity
of one year or less approximates fair value because of its short maturity period.

Derivatives
See “Note 23. DERIVATIVES.”

(b) Carrying amount of financial instruments whose fair value cannot be reliably
determined

Thousands of

The carrying amounts of loans and bills discounted that do not have fixed Millions of Yen U5 Dollars
I, - . o 2018 2017 2018
maturities due to loan characteristics, such as limited loan amounts within the - — - -
. ) ' Equity securities without readily
value of pledged assets, approximate fair value due to their expected repayment available market price*'*2 ¥ 4,335 v 4393 $ 40,793
i . e el TR TR T A AR IR avallable market price™ .............. . , )
periods and interest rate conditions. Investments in partnerships*......... 14,703 10,727 138,358
TOtal v ¥19,038  ¥15,051 $179,151

Liabilities

(1) Deposits

The fair values of demand deposits are recognized as the payment at the date of
the consolidated balance sheet. The fair values of time deposits are determined
by discounting the contractual cash flows grouped by the remaining duration at
the rates that would be applied for similar new contracts.

(2) Negotiable certificates of deposit
Refer to (1) Deposits.

*1 Equity securities without readily available market prices are out of the scope of the fair
value disclosure because their fair values cannot be reliably determined.

*2 During the years ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, impairment losses on equity securi-
ties without readily available market price of ¥2 million ($27 thousand) and ¥46 million
was recognized respectively.

*3 Investments in partnerships, the assets of which comprise equity securities without readi-
ly available market price, are out of the scope of the fair value disclosure.

(6) Maturity Analysis for Financial Assets and Liabilities with Contractual Maturities

Millions of Yen

Duein 1 Year Due after 1 Year Due after 3 Years Due after 5 Years Due after 7 Years

March 31,2018 or Less through 3 Years through 5 Years through 7 Years through 10 Years Due after 10 Years
Due from banks ........c.ceveveieieiiiicecceeee s ¥1,585,188 ¥ —_ ¥ —_ ¥ —_ ¥ —_ ¥ —_
SECUMHIES: ©vvvviieceeie e 340,607 822,898 509,615 414,507 655,895 388,124
Held-to-maturity Securities.........ccoovvvvveveeinnnn 14,583 53,207 21,792 2,043 1,209 50,000
Japanese national government bonds......... — 25,000 — — — 50,000
Japanese local government bonds ............. 50 200 150 —_ —_ —_
Japanese corporate bonds.............ccccevene 14,533 28,007 21,642 2,043 1,209 —_

Available-for-sale securities

with contractual maturities.............c..cccoevevee. 326,023 769,690 487,822 412,464 654,686 338,124
Japanese national government bonds......... 187,000 367,800 80,000 35,000 10,000 57,500
Japanese local government bonds ............. 35,658 153,220 167,188 188,273 233,796 7,447
Japanese corporate bonds............cccvee. 60,350 174,006 146,887 59,871 33,127 171,154
Foreign currency bonds ...........coovvvvernnen. 30,859 45,226 60,018 80,265 315,607 90,346
OtNBI v 12,155 29,438 33,728 49,053 62,155 11,675
Loans and bills discounted*".............ccccvvrrriann. 2,281,662 1,860,348 1,345,704 901,598 976,467 2,793,958
TOtAl o ¥4,207,458 ¥2,683,247 ¥1,855,320 ¥1,316,106 ¥1,632,362 ¥3,182,082
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Millions of Yen

Duein 1 Year Due after 1 Year Due after 3 Years Due after 5 Years Due after 7 Years
March 31,2017 or Less through 3 Years through 5 Years through 7 Years through 10 Years Due after 10 Years
Due from Danks ..o ¥1,268,298 ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — ¥ —
SECUMHIES: ©vvveviiieeee e 361,435 833,882 643,062 367,724 606,278 347,886
Held-to-maturity Securities........ccoovvvvveveeinnnn 14,407 27,093 32,771 1,085 1,022 50,000
Japanese national government bonds......... — 7,000 18,000 — — 50,000
Japanese local government bonds ............. — 200 50 — — —
Japanese corporate bonds.............c.......... 14,407 19,893 14,721 1,085 1,022 —
Available-for-sale securities
with contractual maturities............c.ccevvvvrnnne 347,028 806,788 610,290 366,639 605,256 297,886
205,000 395,300 214,500 25,000 108,600 60,000
49,497 104,546 121,618 139,543 193,048 8,655
43,749 123,563 133,213 84,183 69,635 149,368
44,886 146,694 112,716 98,020 207,062 71,982
3,894 36,683 28,241 19,891 26,909 7,880
2,235,506 1,788,224 1,390,264 872,298 980,891 2,622,773

¥3,865,240 ¥2,622,106 ¥2,033,326 ¥1,240,023 ¥1,5687,169 ¥2,970,659

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Duein 1 Year Due after 1 Year Due after 3 Years Due after 5 Years Due after 7 Years

March 31,2018 or Less through 3 Years through 5 Years through 7 Years through 10 Years  Due after 10 Years
DUe from DanKS .......c.ovveereiiieeeeece e $14,916,613 $ — $ — $ — $ — $ —
SECUMHES: oo 3,205,115 7,743,469 4,795,481 3,900,515 6,171,971 3,652,246
Held-to-maturity SECUMtIES .......ocovvvvrviriieinns 137,234 500,683 205,071 19,229 11,377 470,500
Japanese national government bonds......... — 235,250 — — — 470,500
Japanese local government bonds ............. 470 1,882 1,411 —_ —_ —_
Japanese corporate bonds............c.c.oveveen. 136,764 263,551 203,660 19,229 11,377 —

Available-for-sale securities

with contractual maturities..............c.cccevenn. 3,067,881 7,242,786 4,590,410 3,881,286 6,160,594 3,181,746
Japanese national government bonds......... 1,759,669 3,460,996 752,799 329,350 94,100 541,075
Japanese local government bonds ............. 335,542 1,441,802 1,573,239 1,771,651 2,200,024 70,085
Japanese corporate bonds...........c..c.coeveves 567,900 1,637,395 1,382,210 563,389 311,725 1,610,558
Foreign currency bonds ..o 290,387 425,580 564,776 755,298 2,969,864 850,160
OtNEr v 114,383 277,014 317,385 461,598 584,881 109,868
Loans and bills discounted™'...........cc.cccovvvrerenne. 21,470,432 17,505,871 12,663,074 8,484,040 9,188,548 26,291,129
TOtAl v $39,592,160 $25,249,341 $17,458,555 $12,384,555 $15,360,520 $29,943,375

*1 As of March 31, 2018, loans and bills discounted with no contractual maturities amounting to ¥191,531 million ($1,802,310 thousand) and loans and bills discounted whose cash flow cannot
be estimated, such as “legal bankruptcy,” “virtual bankruptcy,” and “possible bankruptcy” loans, amounting to ¥146,704 million ($1,380,487 thousand) are not included.

*2 As of March 31, 2017, loans and bills discounted with no contractual maturities amounting to ¥200,924 million and loans and bills discounted whose cash flow cannot be estimated, such as
“legal bankruptcy,” “virtual bankruptcy,” and “possible bankruptcy” loans, amounting to ¥153,847 million are not included.

Millions of Yen
Duein 1 Year Due after 1 Year Due after 3 Years Due after 5 Years Due after 7 Years
March 31,2018 or Less through 3 Years through 5 Years through 7 Years through 10 Years  Due after 10 Years
DBPOSIES *T .o ¥12,960,866 ¥874,853 ¥129,996 ¥9,175 ¥3,021 ¥—
Negotiable certificates of deposit............ccccvvvnn. 272,640 — —_ — — —
Call money and bills SOId ............cceveveiiiriiinnnn, 340,540 — — — — —
BOrrowed MONBY..........cvveveveiniicceceiccceias 697,268 116,443 63,926 211 5 —_
TOMAl oo ¥14,271,316 ¥991,296 ¥193,922 ¥9,387 ¥3,027 ¥—
Millions of Yen
Duein 1 Year Due after 1 Year Due after 3 Years Due after 5 Years Due after 7 Years
March 31,2017 or Less through 3 Years through 5 Years through 7 Years through 10 Years Due after 10 Years
DBPOSIES *" .o, ¥12,402,723 ¥ 964,401 ¥126,609 ¥9,161 ¥4152 ¥—

Negotiable certificates of depoSit..............ccvveee. 284,605 100 — — — —
Call money and bills SOId............cccccverivriiriinann, 303,312 — — — — —
Payables under securities lending transactions ... 167,640 — — — — —
Borrowed money.. . 502,373 156,360 76,833 12 12 —
TOtAl o ¥13,660,655 ¥1,120,862 ¥203,443 ¥9173 ¥4,164 ¥—
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Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Duein 1 Year Due after 1 Year Due after 3 Years Due after 5 Years Due after 7 Years
March 31,2018 or Less through 3 Years through 5 Years through 7 Years through 10 Years Due after 10 Years
DBPOSIS *T .o $121,961,670 $8,232,363 $1,223,263 $86,344 $28,429 $—
2,565,543 — — — — —
3,204,487 — — — — —
6,561,293 1,095,729 601,551 1,994 56 —_
$134,292,992 $9,328,092 $1,824,814 $88,338 $28,485 $—

*1 The cash flow of demand deposits is included in “Due in one year or less.”

23. DERIVATIVES
(1) Derivative Transactions to Which Hedge Accounting Is Not Applied as of March 31, 2018 and 2017
With respect to derivatives to which hedge accounting is not applied, contract amount or notional principal, fair value, and the related valuation gains (losses) at the fiscal
year end date by transaction type and valuation method of fair value are as follows. Note that contract amounts do not represent the market risk exposure associated with
derivatives.

Consolidated banking subsidiaries had the following derivative contracts, which were quoted on listed exchanges, outstanding as of March 31, 2018 and 2017, as
follows:

Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S. Dollars
Contract Amount Contract Amount
Contract Due after Fair Unrealized Contract Due after Fair Unrealized
March 31,2018 Amount One Year Value Gains/Losses Amount One Year Value Gains/Losses
Bond-related transactions
Bond futures:
SOl oo ¥5,579 ¥— ¥ ¥ $52,503 $— $10 $10
Bought ..o 754 — (0) (0) 7,099 — (6) (6)
TOtal v — — ¥0 ¥0 — — $4 $4
Millions of Yen
Contract Amount
Contract Due after Fair Unrealized
March 31,2017 Amount One Year Value Gains/Losses
Bond-related transactions
Bond futures:
¥2,553 ¥— ¥(1) ¥(1)
— — ¥1) ¥1)

Note:

1 The transactions above are stated at fair value, and the related valuation gains (losses) are reported in the consolidated statement of income.
2 Fair values of transactions above are determined based on closing prices at the Osaka Exchange or other relevant exchanges.

Consolidated banking subsidiaries had the following derivative contracts, which were not quoted on listed exchanges, outstanding as of March 31, 2018 and 2017, as fol-
lows:

Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S. Dollars
Contract Amount Contract Amount
Contract Due after Fair Unrealized Contract Due after Fair Unrealized
March 31,2018 Amount One Year Value Gains/Losses Amount One Year Value Gains/Losses
Interest rate-related transactions
Interest rate swaps:
Receive fixed and pay floating...... ¥113,752 ¥ 97,411 ¥1,762 ¥1,762 $1,070,406 $ 916,638 $16,588 $16,588
Receive floating and pay fixed..... 113,752 97,411 (275) (275) 1,070,406 916,638 (2,589) (2,589)
Cap transaction
SOI e 775 710 0) 3 7,300 6,688 @) 36
Bought ..o 775 710 0 (2) 7,300 6,688 3 (23)
TOtAl e — — ¥1,487 ¥1,489 — — $13,998 $14,012
Currency-related transactions
CUITENCY SWAPS.....vvvveviveirrneirians ¥208,362 ¥186,339 ¥349 ¥349 $1,960,688 $1,753,456 $ 3,287 $ 3,287
Forward exchange contracts:
64,148 5,320 1,111 1,111 603,638 50,069 10,455 10,455
85,701 2,599 (1,098) (1,098) 806,454 24,460 (10,339) (10,339)
101,897 63,374 (3,392) (898) 958,858 596,353 (31,927) (8,455)
101,897 63,374 3,348 2,227 958,858 596,353 31,506 20,961
— — ¥ 316 ¥1,690 — — $ 2,982 $15,910

53  Mebuki Financial Group, Inc.



Millions of Yen

Contract Amount

Contract Due after Fair Unrealized
March 31,2017 Amount One Year Value Gains/Losses
Interest rate-related transactions
Interest rate swaps:
Receive fixed and pay floating...... ¥106,628 ¥87,406 ¥1,629 ¥1,629
Receive floating and pay fixed..... 106,628 87,406 (296) (296)
Swaption
SOl oo 2,030 — 1 9
Bought ..o 2,030 — 1 1
TOtAl v — — ¥1,332 ¥1,343
Currency-related transactions
CUITENCY SWAPS.....veverveveiiericereas ¥276,519 ¥181,614 ¥ 393 ¥ 393
Forward exchange contracts:
45,875 4,937 (1,048) (1,048)
46,771 4,191 1,064 1,064
70,344 37,363 (1,941) (484)
70,344 37,363 1,954 1,223
— — ¥ 422 ¥1,148

Note:

1 The transactions above are stated at fair value and the related valuation gains (losses) are reported in the consolidated statement of income.

2 Fair values of transactions above are determined based on a discounted cash flows model, an option pricing model or other models as appropriate.

(2) Derivative Transactions to Which Hedge Accounting Is Applied as of March 31, 2018 and 2017

With respect to derivatives to which hedge accounting is applied, contract amount or notional principal and fair value at the fiscal year end date by transaction type and
hedge accounting method and valuation method of fair value are as follows. Note that contract amounts do not represent the market risk exposure associated with deriva-

tives.

Consolidated banking subsidiaries had the following derivative contracts, which were accounted for based on the principle method, outstanding as of March 31,

2018 and 2017, as follows:

Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S. Dollars
Contract Amount Contract Amount
Contract Due after Fair Contract Due after Fair
March 31,2018 Hedged Item Amount One Year Value Amount One Year Value
Interest rate-related transactions*'**
Interest rate swaps:
Interest-bearing financial assets
and liabilities, including loans,
available-for-sale securities,
deposits and negotiable
Receive floating and pay fixed...... certificates of deposit, etc. ¥ 20,000 ¥ — ¥ (182) $ 188,200 $ — $1,75)
TOtal oo — — ¥ (182) — — $ (1,715)
: *2%5
Currency-related transactions Loans, securities, deposits,
CUITENCY SWAPS..v. v foreign exchanges, etc., which ¥131,077 ¥59,546 ¥3,017 $1,233,443 $560,333 $28,391
Forward exchange contracts ............ are denominated in foreign 20,508 — 1,193 192,986 — 11,227
Foreign exchange swap ................... currencies 25,062 — 501 235,835 — 4,716
Total oo — — ¥4,711 — — $44,334
Equity-related transactions***6
Stock forward contracts Available-for-sale securities
SOl o ¥ 4,147 ¥ — ¥ 105 $ 39,028 $ — $ 992
Total oo — — ¥ 105 — — $ 992
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Millions of Yen

Contract Amount

Contract Due after Fair
March 31,2017 Hedged Item Amount One Year Value
Interest rate-related transactions*'**
Interest rate swaps:
Interest-bearing financial assets
and liabilities, including loans,
available-for-sale securities,
deposits and negotiable
Receive floating and pay fixed...... certificates of deposit, etc. ¥ 40,000 ¥30,000 ¥(543)
Total oo — — ¥(543)
: *2%5
Currency-related transactions Loans, securities, deposits,
CUITeNCY SWapS........ooocvvrvviviinnnns foreign exchanges, etc., which ~ ¥161,342 ¥84,642 ¥ (68)
Forward exchange contracts ............ are denominated in foreign 103,102 — 825
Foreign exchange swap .................. currencies 79,207 — (722)
Total oo — — ¥ 44
Equity-related transactions***6
Stock forward contracts Available-for-sale securities
SOl o ¥ 4,473 ¥ — ¥ 24
Total oo — — ¥ 24

Note: 1. Interest rate-related transactions are primarily accounted for using the deferral method in accordance with “Accounting and Auditing Treatment relating to the Adoption of ‘Accounting
for Financial Instruments’ for Banks” (JICPA Industry Audit Committee Report No. 24, February 13, 2002).

2. Currency-related transactions are primarily accounted for using the deferral method in accordance with “Accounting and Auditing Treatment relating to Accounting for Foreign Currency
Transactions in the Banking Industry” (JICPA Industry Audit Committee Report No. 25, July 29, 2002).

3. Equity-related transactions are accounted for using the deferral method.

4. Fair values of exchange-traded transactions are determined based on closing prices at the Tokyo Financial Exchange or other relevant exchanges. Fair values of over-the-counter-trad-

ed transactions are determined based on a discounted cash flows model, an option-pricing model or other models, as appropriate.

5. Fair value is determined based on a discounted cash flows model.

6. Fair value is determined based on prices provided by correspondent financial institutions.

Consolidated banking subsidiaries had the following derivative contracts, which were accounted for by the exceptional accrual method, outstanding as of March 31,

2018.
Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S. Dollars
Contract Amount Contract Amount
Contract Due after Fair Contract Due after Fair
March 31,2018 Hedged Item Amount One Year Value Amount One Year Value
Interest rate-related transactions
Interest rate swaps:
Receive fixed and pay floating.......Loans and borrowed money ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — $ — $ — $ —
Receive floating and pay fixed...... 18,475 13,153 (471) 173,859 123,776 (4,433)
Total oo — — ¥(471) —_ —_ $(4,433)
Millions of Yen
Contract Amount
Contract Due after Fair
March 31,2017 Hedged Item Amount One Year Value
Interest rate-related transactions
Interest rate swaps:
Receive fixed and pay floating......Loans and borrowed money ¥ 2,000 ¥ — ¥ 21
Receive floating and pay fixed...... 24,016 18,594 (852)
Total o — — ¥(831)

Note: The exceptional accrual method of hedge accounting, as specifically permitted for certain interest rate swaps, is valued with the hedged items as a whole so that the fair value is included in
the fair value of borrowed money and loans and bills discounted (“Note 22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES (5) Fair Values of Financial Instruments”).
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24. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
The components of other comprehensive income (l0ss) for the years ended
March 31, 2018 and 2017, were as follows:

Thousands of

Other segment-related information:
(1) Information by services
Millions of Yen (Thousands of U.S. Dollars)

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2018 2017 2018
Unrealized gains (losses)
on available-for-sale securities:
Gains (losses) arising during the
YEAT ..o ¥ (8,655) ¥ 4,630 $ (81,450)
Reclassification adjustments
10 Profit Or 10SS...cvevvvvvreiiiiiinins (2,434) (14,419 (22,911)
Amount before
income tax effect.................... (11,090) (9,789 (104,361)
Income tax effect ... . 3,272 3,281 30,797
TOtal v ¥ (7,817) ¥ (6,507) $ (73,564)
Deferred gains (losses) on derivatives
under hedge:
Gains arising during the year-......... ¥ 298 ¥ 6,412 $ 28,098
Reclassification adjustments
0 profit or l0SS.......vovveveriviriians (2,097) (2,963) (19,740)
Amount before
income tax effect.. 888 3,448 8,358
Income tax effect ... (270) (1,049 (2,545)

Total oo ¥ 617 ¥ 2399 $ 5813

Land revaluation excess, net of taxes:
Gains arising during the year.......... ¥ — ¥ — $ =

Reclassification adjustments to
Profit or 0SS ..vvvveveveviiiiiiia —_ — —

Amount before income tax

ITECT. v — — —
Income tax effect ..........c.ooeevenns 468 — 4,409
TOtal s ¥ 468 ¥ — $ 4,409
Defined retirement benefit plans:
Gains arising during the year.......... ¥ 1,038 ¥ 3,843 $ 971
Reclassification adjustments
0 profit or 10SS.....covvviiriiiiieinan, 2,960 3,688 27,856
Amount before
income tax effect.................... 3,998 7,532 37,627
Income tax effect ............coceeue. (1,221) (2,298) (11,495)
TOtal ¥ 2777 ¥ 5233 $ 26,132
Total other comprehensive
INCOME (10SS)...v.vvevviriisieieieciiias ¥ (3,954) ¥ 1,125 $ (37,210)

25. SEGMENT INFORMATION
Under ASBJ Statement No. 17, “Accounting Standard for Segment Information
Disclosures,” and ASBJ Guidance No. 20, “Guidance on Accounting Standard for
Segment Information Disclosures,” an entity is required to report financial and
descriptive information about its reportable segments. Reportable segments are
operating segments or aggregations of operating segments that meet specified
criteria. Operating segments are components of an entity about which separate
financial information is available, and such information is evaluated regularly by
the chief operating decision maker in deciding how to allocate resources and in
assessing performance. Generally, segment information is required to be report-
ed on the same basis as is used internally for evaluating operating segment per-
formance and deciding how to allocate resources to operating segments.

The Group engages in banking and other related activities, such as leasing,
securities, and credit card services. Segment information is not disclosed due to
the immateriality of operations other than banking.

Lending Investment
March 31,2018 Operations Operations Other Total
Ordinary income
from external ¥113,739 ¥61,159 ¥87,473 ¥262,373
customers.............. ($1,070,292) ($575,511) ($823,125) ($2,468,928)
Millions of Yen
Lending Investment
March 31,2017 Operations Operations Other Total
Ordinary income
from external
CUStOMErS.......co.v.. ¥89,325 ¥56,209 ¥67,750 ¥213,284

(2) Information by geographic region

Since the ordinary income and total tangible fixed assets attributable to the “Ja-
pan” segment account for more than 90% of the total of all geographic seg-
ments, geographical segment information has not been presented.

(3) Information by major customers

Since there has been no specific customer to whom the Group sells more than
10% of total ordinary income on the consolidated statement of income, informa-
tion on major customers has not been presented.

(4) Information on loss on impairment of fixed assets by reportable segment
Information on loss on impairment of fixed assets is not disclosed due to imma-
teriality, except for the banking business.

(5) Information on amortization and unamortized balance of goodwill by report-
able segment

Information on amortization and unamortized balance of goodwill is not disclosed
due to immateriality, except for the banking business.

(6) Information on gain on negative goodwill by reportable segment

Information on gain on negative goodwill is not disclosed due to immateriality, ex-
cept for the banking business.
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26. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Related party transactions of consolidated subsidiaries of the Company with its directors or major individual shareholders for the years ended March 31, 2018 and 2017,

were as follows:
Year ended March 31, 2018

Capital
(Millions of Yen Transactions Outstanding Balance
/Thousands of (Millions of Yen/ (Millions of Yen/
Type Name Location U.S. Dollars) Business Ownerships  Relationship  Thousands of U.S. Dollars) Thousands of U.S. Dollars)
A director or Yoshie Suto o _ o o o Loan ¥47 Loatr)liﬁsand ¥46
director’s close relative ($444) discounted ($434)
Companies in which a .
majorty of voting ights s Hoano o ¥ Steel B N Lo yip  Loameand ¥i1
owned by a director or Yo L0., ($66)  manufacturing ($108) discounted ($107)
director’s close relatives
Terms and conditions on transactions and transaction policy:
The interest rate on loans is reasonably determined considering the market rate.
Year ended March 31, 2017
Capital Transactions Outstanding Balance
Type Name Location  (Millions of Yen) ~ Business Ownerships  Relationship (Millions of Yen) (Millions of Yen)
. Loans and
A director or . .
director’s close relative 0SNe SUl0 o o o o o Loan ¥28 disct:)”lljite d ¥48
o Loans and
Companies inwhicha |0 dentist Ibaraki ¥22  Dental Clinic — — Loan ¥12 bills ¥28
majority of voting rights is discounted
owned by a director or Loans and
director’s close relatives
Loan ¥114 bills ¥100
Yokokura discounted
Honten Tochigi ¥20 Wholesale — — Underwritin
€0, L1D. el V100  Securies  ¥100
placement
bond

Terms and conditions on transactions and transaction policy:
The interest rate on loans is reasonably determined considering the market rate.

27.SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Acquisition of treasury stock

At the Board of Directors’ meeting held on May 11, 2018, the Company resolved to acquire treasury stock for the purpose of enhancement of shareholder returns and im-
proving capital efficiency, pursuant to the provisions of the Articles of Incorporation in accordance with the provision of Article 459, Paragraph 1, of the Companies Act. The
repurchase of treasury stock pursuant to the resolution of that meeting has completed.

1. Contents of the resolution adopted by the Board of Directors’ meeting held on May 11,2018

(1) Class of shares to be acquired : Common stock
(2) Total number of shares to be acquired : 5,000,000 shares (upper limit)
(3) Total acquisition cost . ¥2,500 million (upper limit)
($23,525 thousand)
(4) Period of acquisition . From May 14, 2018, to June 22, 2018
(5) Method of acquisition . Purchase through the market on the Tokyo Stock Exchange

2. Status of acquisition of treasury stock

(1) Class of shares acquired . Common stock
(2) Total number of shares acquired . 5,000,000 shares
(3) Total acquisition cost . ¥2,089 million
($19,660 thousand)
(4) Period of acquisition . From May 14, 2018, to May 25, 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REFORT
To the Board of Dvrectors of Mebuki Finandal Group, [nc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Mebuki Financial Group, Inc.
and its consolidated subsidiaries as of March 31, 2018, and the related consolidated statermnenits of
income, comprehensive Income, changes in equity, and cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, all expressed in
Japanese ven.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statemenits

Management is responsible for the preparation and falr presentation of these consolidated financial
statemnents in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financlal statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Owr responsibility is to express an opinion on these consclidated financial statements based an our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan,
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated fimancial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, Including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to frawd or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of
the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We belicve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficlent and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinicn.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of Mebuki Financial Group, Inc. and its
consolidated subsidiaries as of March 31, 2018, and the consolidated results of their operations and
their cash Mows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in Japan.

Convenience Translation

Owur audit also comprehended the translation of Japanese yen amounts into U.S. dollar amounts
and, in our opinion, such translation has been made in accordance with the basis stated in hote ]
to the consolidated financial statements. Such U.S. dellar amounts are presented solely for the
convenience of readers outside Japan.

Lelovttr. Touche Tohmatan LLC
June 27, 2018

Mermber of
efioftte Toucke Tohmatiu Limite
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Non-Consolidated Balance Sheet (Unaudited)

March 31,2018 The Joyo Bank, Ltd.

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2018 2017 2018
ASSETS
Cash and due from DANKS ........cviiiiiiiiiicceec s ¥ 968,263 ¥ 754,116 $ 9,111,350
Call loans and bills DOUGNT...........oviviviiiiiccc 13,786 3,365 129,730
Monetary Claims DOUGNL .......voviviiiiii e 7,447 8,161 70,080
Trading assets 8,526 4,060 80,239
SECUMHIES ..o 2,802,591 2,793,575 26,372,367
Loans and bills discounted 6,063,500 5,967,030 57,057,501
FOrEIGN BXCNANGES. ...ttt 3,341 2,826 31,448
DN @SS ...ttt 77,320 48,076 727,589
TangibIE fIXEA @SSELS ...vv.viviririiieice s 81,764 85,854 769,403
INtANQGIDIE fIXEA @SSETS....v.vivivirieiii et 9,153 9,531 86,134
Prepaid PENSION COST......v.viviriieiiiiitiiete et 6,495 7,231 61,124
Customers’ liabilities for acceptances and guarantees ..............cccoceeeiiiiveicieeennn, 46,564 47,620 438,175
AllOWANCE TOr 10BN I0SSES ...t (35,002) (34,416) (329,369)
Allowance for iNVESIMENT I0SSES ........v.veviiieieieieicsee s 9) 9 (89)
TOTAL oottt ¥10,053,746 ¥9,697,024 $94,605,686
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES:
DEDOSIES ...ttt ettt ettt ettt b e ¥ 8,509,025 ¥8,240,398 $80,069,873
Negotiable certificates 0f dPOSIT.........vvviiiieieeee s 67,249 56,252 632,820
Call money and DillS SOId........coveviiiiriiiiii s 65,340 61,337 614,857
Payables under repurchase agreement ..........ccoveviiieriiiniieeeee e 26,314 — 247,619
Payables under securities lending tranSactions ... 61,535 135,417 579,053
Trading liabilities 504 511 4,750
Borrowed money 579,167 436,978 5,449,959
Foreign exchanges 451 501 4,253
BONGS ... ettt 5,000 5,000 47,050
DUE 10 TTUSE ACCOUNT ... 11 13 112
Other lIADIIHIES. ....eveveviiiiiseet ettt 38,513 63,079 362,414
Provision for direCtors’ DONUSES ......c.vvvvviiiiiiiiieeese e 65 48 612
Provision for retirement DENETILS ........c.coveiiiiiii 8,638 8,415 81,290
Provision for reimbursement of dePOSIS..........ovviviiiiriiiicce e 2,838 2,585 26,715
Provision for point card CertifiCates ... 85 106 809
Provision for CONtINGENT I0SSES........viiriiiiiiiieie e 946 1,038 8,907
Deferred tax iabilities. ... 33,260 35,662 312,983
Deferred tax liabilities for land revaluation 8,546 8,774 80,419
Acceptances and guarantees.........cccvvvvvveveeerriiveriieinannas 46,564 47,620 438,175
TOtal lIADIHIES ....vvevvevceceeec et 9,454,062 9,103,740 88,962,667
EQUITY:
COMMON SEOCK ...ttt 85,113 85,113 800,914
CaPITAl SUMPIUS .ttt 58,574 58,574 551,181
RETAINEA BAMINGS ... . iviieiitiieieiet e 319,555 308,341 3,007,015
Valuation adjUSTMENTS: .....cvvvvviiiecc s 136,441 141,254 1,283,909
Unrealized gains on available-for-sale SECUMtIES.........coveviviireiiiireiiiccicaena 123,847 130,542 1,165,406
Deferred losses on derivatives under hedge accounting ..........cccevvvvvvvvvivivivinnanan, (31) (674) (300)
Land revaluation SUMPIUS ........oviveeviiieicc e 12,625 11,287 118,803
TOAl BQUITY ..ottt 599,683 593,283 5,643,019
TOTAL ottt ¥10,053,746 ¥9,697,024 $94,605,686
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Non-Consolidated Statement of Income (Unaudited)

Year Ended March 31,2018 The Joyo Bank, Ltd.

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2018 2017 2018
INCOME:
Interest income:
Interest on loans and bills AiSCOUNTEA .........cvoveviiviiiiiiii e ¥63,245 ¥63,726 $595,143
Interest and dividends 0N SECUMLIES ........cvivieeiiiieccce e 30,213 28,625 284,306
Interest on call loans and bills bought 70 33 664
Interest on deposits with banks .... 291 315 2,741
Other interest income................... 349 401 3,285
TTUSE FBES ..ttt 42 22 404
FEES and COMMISSIONS. .. ...cviviivririiit ittt re 24,801 22,154 233,378
Trading INCOIME ...cvvvivieiictee ettt 373 449 3,518
Other 0perating INCOME...........ovoiiirririie s 3,503 11,997 32,969
OB INCOME vttt 16,252 13,332 152,937
TOtAl INCOME ... 139,143 141,059 1,309,344
EXPENSES:
Interest expenses:
INTEreSt ON AEPOSIES ....ovviveiii it 2,497 2,125 23,499
Interest on negotiable certificates of deposit................ 16 13 153
Interest on call money and bills sold ..............c.cccoeuees 561 471 5,280
Interest on payables under repurchase agreements 246 — 2,324
Interest on payables under securities lending transactions ............ccococovvvveiininnnn, 1,146 957 10,788
Interest on BOrrOWE MONBY ........oviviriiiiiiieie s 801 616 7,543
[NTEIESE 0N DONGS. ...ttt 132 233 1,242
INtErest 0N INTErESt SWAD ... .vvvvviviieiieiece s 2,088 2,478 19,656
Other INTEIESt BXPENSES .....vivvviviiciiei et 859 1,007 8,090
Fees and commissions................. 7,917 7,815 74,501
Other operating eXpenses...........c.cuv.... 6,138 6,757 57,764
General and administrative expenses..... 69,347 72,544 652,561
Provision of allowance for [0an 10SSES ..........vvevveririiieieiieeeee s 3,340 3,811 31,437
OENET BXDBNSES ....vvivrieeeeei ettt ettt s et e et 7,646 7,379 71,950
TOtAl BXPENSES ..ttt 102,740 106,211 966,787
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES .....ooiiiiiiiiitet ettt 36,403 34,847 342,557
INCOME TAXES:
CUITBITE 1.ttt bbbttt ettt 10,360 10,477 97,493
DEIBITEA. ...ttt 529 (84) 4,986
TOtAl INCOME TAXES ...vivvivvcveii e 10,890 10,392 102,479
NETINCOME .....ooiiiit ettt ¥25,513 ¥24,454 $240,078
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Non-Consolidated Balance Sheet (Unaudited)

March 31,2018 The Ashikaga Bank, Ltd.

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2018 2017 2018
ASSETS
Cash and due from DANKS ........cviiiiiiiiiicceec s ¥ 740,378 ¥ 639,631 $ 6,966,958
Call loans and bills DOUGNT..........c.cviviviiiiicicc s 849 1,795 7,998
Monetary Claims DOUGNT.........cvoiiiriiiiic s 7,941 7,791 74,725
Trading account securities 4,012 3,166 37,758
SECUMHES ... 1,391,021 1,417,158 13,089,505
Loans and bills discounted 4,517,299 4,348,447 42,507,762
FOrEIGN BXCNANGES. ...ttt 3,074 4,396 28,928
DN @SS ...ttt 69,504 32,106 654,040
TangibIE fIXEA @SSELS ...vv.viviririiieice s 27,001 25,872 254,081
INtANQGIDIE fIXEA @SSETS....v.vivivirieiii et 5,207 2,370 49,005
Prepaid PENSION COST......v.viviriieiiiiitiiete et 18,310 15,323 172,299
DEfRITEA TAX ASSES ... uvivviiiiiii it 4,005 2,461 37,689
Customers’ liabilities for acceptances and guarantees ............c.cccoeerrrencicienrennn. 10,219 11,953 96,165
AlIOWANCE TOF 10BN T0SSES ..vvvvvrviviiiiiiieiee et (34,283) (34,746) (322,608)
TOTAL ottt ¥6,764,543 ¥6,477,729 $63,654,305
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES:
DBDOSIES ..ottt ¥5,529,812 ¥5,332,582 $52,035,499
Negotiable certificates 0f ABPOSIT........cvoviiiiriiii s 279,440 289,303 2,629,533
Call money and DillS SOIT.........c.vviviiiiiris e 275,200 241,975 2,589,630
Payables under securities lending tranSactionsS .............ccvvveveviivireinieeinseeiseaenna 96,613 32,222 909,131
BOMTOWEA MONBY ...vvvvivive ettt 222,366 220,047 2,092,470
Foreign exchanges 256 256 2,417
Other liabilities. ........cocovvvvirainnns 26,562 30,324 249,955
Provision for directors’ bonuses 54 53 509
Provision for reimbursement of dePOSIES...........ovoveviviiiiiiiic s 943 895 8,874
Provision for CONtINGENT I0SSES. .....v.viviiriiiiiiiesie s 656 509 6,179
Provision for point card CErtifiCatES ..........covvvviiiiiriiii s 130 111 1,225
ACCeptances and GUATANTEES. ..........vvirrrerereieisieiesereeee et 10,219 11,953 96,165
TOtAl TADIHIES ... 6,442,255 6,160,235 60,621,586
EQUITY:
COMMON STOCK ...ttt 135,000 135,000 1,270,349
157,188 145,333 1,479,140
30,098 37,160 283,230
30,123 37,259 283,459
Deferred losses on hedges (24) (99) (229)
TOMAI BOUIY o1ttt 322,287 317,494 3,032,719
TOTAL bt ¥6,764,543 ¥6,477,729 $63,654,305
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Non-Consolidated Statement of Income (Unaudited)

Year Ended March 31,2018 The Ashikaga Bank, Ltd.

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2018 2017 2018
INCOME:
Interest income:
Interest on loans and bills AiSCOUNTEA .........cvoveviiviiiiiiii e ¥49,379 ¥51,017 $464,657
Interest and dividends 0N SECUMLIES ........cvivieeiiiieccce e 22,655 20,073 213,186
Interest on call loans and bills bought 37 60 354
Interest on deposits with banks .... 361 373 3,399
Other interest inCOME .........co...... 88 82 831
FEes and COMMISSIONS. .......cviviviriiiririer ettt 21,169 20,040 199,203
Other 0perating iNCOME.........coviviiiiriiii et 1,267 1,772 11,925
OtNBIINCOME <.t 4,139 4,348 38,952
TOtAl INCOME ..o 99,097 97,768 932,507
EXPENSES:
Interest expenses:
INTEreSt 0N AEPOSIES .....vivvvivieiictc e 1,236 1,110 11,631
Interest on negotiable certificates of depOSIt...........cccovviiiiiiiiiiiii 82 85 775
Interest on call money and bills sold 28 152 264
Interest on payables under securities lending transactions ............ccocccovvvveiininnnn, 1,249 411 11,757
Interest on borrowed MONBY .........cccovviiiiiiiiiieieieeen 61 40 580
Other INTEIESt BXPENSES ....vivivvvivircieet et 1,934 1,508 18,202
Fees and COMMISSIONS PAYMENTS ©.....c.viviviiiiriiicie s 1,275 6,747 68,461
Other Operating EXPENSES. .........eviviririiiiiiieee ettt 2,808 1,062 26,429
General and adminiStrative BXPENSES .......cvivevevireieiiee e 47,307 46,526 445,163
Provision of allowance for [0an 10SSES ........c.ovveveeriiriiieiei e 2,591 4,444 24,386
OENET BXPENSES ....vvivi ittt 3,847 3,717 36,202
Total expenses............c...... 68,422 65,807 643,851
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES 30,675 31,960 288,656
INCOME TAXES:
CUITBIE L.ttt ettt 7,900 9,350 74,343
DEEITEA ..ottt 1,420 (3,802 13,366
TOLAl INCOME TAXES ...ttt 9,320 5,547 87,709
NETINCOME .....oovviiisir ettt ¥21,354 ¥26,412 $200,946
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Corporate Data (as of March 31, 2018)

Mebuki Financial Group, Inc.

Address 7-2,Yaesu 2-chome, Chuo-ku, Tokyo
Head Office address ~ (Mito Head Office)
5-5, Minami-machi 2-chome, Mito, Ibaraki Prefecture
(Utsunomiya Head Office)
1-25, Sakura 4-chome, Utsunomiya, Tochigi Prefecture
Paid in capital 1174 billion yen

Establishment April 1,2008

(Change of tradename: October 1, 2016)
Stock exchange listing Tokyo Stock Exchange
Number of employees 120
(redit ratings A (R&l)

*Excluding those transferred to organizations
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The Joyo Bank, Ltd.

Founded July 30,1935

Head Office 5-5, Minami-machi 2-chome, Mito, Ibaraki Prefecture

Paid in capital 85.1 billion yen

Network Domestic: 183 offices (152 branches, 31 sub-branches)
Overseas: 4 Representative Offices (Shanghai, Singapore, New York,
Hanoi)

Number of employees* 3,332

(redit ratings A+ (R&I) A2 (Moody’s)

The Ashikaga Bank, Ltd.

Founded October 1, 1895
Head Office 1-25, Sakura 4-chome, Utsunomiya, Tochigi Prefecture
Paid in capital 135.0 billion yen
Network Domestic: 153 offices (106 branches, 47 sub-branches)

Overseas: 2 Representative Office (Hong Kong, Bangkok)
Number of employees* 2,826
Credit ratings A+ (R&I)
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